
THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA  
Council Meeting 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
 

The Council of the Town of Kenneth City will meet at Community Hall, located 4600 
58th Street North, Kenneth City, Florida to discuss the agenda items of Town business 
listed at the time indicated below. 

 
 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

D. Administration of Oath of Office & Council Reappointment 
1. Councilmember Noble 
2. Councilmember Zemaitis 
3. Appointment of Vice-Mayor 

 

E. Presentation of Candidates for PSTA Board of Directors- Inland Cities Group 
  
F.  Consent Agenda for April 2022 

1. March 9th, 2022, Council Meeting Minutes 
2. Accela Contract  

Exhibit 1:  Government Price Quotation 
3. Comprehensive Plan, Department of Economic Opportunity 

Exhibit 2:  Evaluation and Appraisal Review Letter 
  

G. Public Comment – formerly called Open Forum (limited to 3 minutes) 
 
 
 
 
 

H.  Action Agenda 
1. Solid Waste Contract Selection 
2. Accounting and Finance Contract Approval  
 Exhibit 3: One Year Contract with Andrew Tess, CPA 
3. Chapter 54  
 Exhibit 4: Chapter 54 FAQ 
4. Administrative Policy and Procedure Manual 
 Exhibit 5: Policy 2022-01 
 

Please state your name and address for the record. Public participation is encouraged. If you are addressing the 
Council, step to the podium and state your name and address for the record. 
 

Public comments can also be submitted by email to the Town Clerk at Town57@kennethcityfl.org, written comments 
must be received by 4pm on the day of the meeting and will be read aloud during the meeting. Please limit your 
comments to 400 words as the comments are limited to three minutes. 

 

6:30 pm April 13 ,2022      Community Hall 

mailto:Town57@kennethcityfl.org


5. FY 2022-23 Budget Calendar
Exhibit 6: Budget Calendar for FY 2022-2023

I. Mayor/Council Comments
1. Councilmember Noble

• Workshop Budget Preparation Talks
• Contract Administration & Request for Proposal

J. Department Reports (Public Works, Public Safety, Building)
1. Public Works

a. Watershed Management Plan Presentation
Exhibit 7: Presentation

2. Public Safety
Exhibit 8. KCPD stats 
Exhibit 9. Fire Department Report 

3. Building, Planning and Zoning
Exhibit 10. KC Building Stats 

K. Officer Reports (Town Clerk, Attorney and Town Manager)
Exhibit 11. Town Financial Summary & GL Variance Report 

L. Supplement: Copies of current contracts and agreements
1. Street Sweeper, Sweeping Corporation of America
2. Civics Plus, Town Website
3. Crawford and Jones, Finance Auditors
4. Gallagher, Town Employee Health Insurance Broker
5. Interlocal Agreement with Pinellas Park for Building Dept. Services
6. Interlocal Agreement with Pinellas Park for Fire Dept. Services
7. Watershed Management Plan, Advanced Engineering & Design, Inc.
8. Public Risk Management, P & C Insurance
9. Konica Minolta, Copy Machine Town Hall and Police Department
10. Sun Coast Police Benevolent Association
11. Pinellas County Sheriff's Office Agreement
12. Trask Daigneault, LLP; Town Attorney Services
13. Andrew Tess, CPA (Exhibit 3)

LI. Adjournment

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and 
for such purposes may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal 
is to be based. The law does not require the Town Clerk to transcribe verbatim minutes; therefore, the applicant must make the necessary arrangements with a 
private reporting firm and bear the resulting expense. In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and F.S. 286.26; any person with a disability requiring 
reasonable accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should call 727-498-8948 or fax a written request to 727-498-8841. www.kennethcityfl.org 

http://www.kennethcityfl.org/


 

THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA 

Council Meeting Minutes 
       March 9, 2022 

 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

Present were Councilmember Noble, Councilmember Cummings, Vice Mayor 
Zemaitis, Mayor Howell, Town Manager Cavalli, Attorney Mora and Town Clerk Ana 
Cabezas. Councilmember Roberts was not present. 

 
D. Administration of Oath of Office, Kenneth City Police Chief 

Town Clerk, Ana Cabezas swore in Police Chief Mike Vieno. 
 
E. Consent Agenda 

February Meeting Minutes 
 02/09/2022 Council Meeting  
 

Motion to approve consent agenda made by Councilmember Noble. 
Second was offered by Vice Mayor Zemaitis. 
All in favor 
Motion to approve consent agenda passed 

 
F.  Public Comment 
 Tim Shoby 4702 Lake Charles Drive 

Mr. Shoby expressed safety concerns for children and pedestrians at the corner 
of Lake Charles Drive and 47th Ave. Mr. Shoby reported that he has witnessed 
numerous vehicles running through the stop sign without stopping. 

 
Mayor Howell closed public comment. 
 

G. Action Agenda 
 
1.  Resolution 2022-02 Cancelling the March 2022 Election 

Attorney Mora read the resolution by title to cancel the election due to 
Council Members Noble and Zemaitis running unopposed.  
 
The Mayor opened the floor to public comment. 
 



 
Al Hrvatin, 6116 52nd Ave N 
Mr. Hrvatin asked if the polls would still be open on March 15th. The attorney 
explained that there were no issues to place on the ballot or state election 
that would require the polls to be open on March 15th. 
 

Councilmember Noble  Yes 
Councilmember Cummings Yes 
Councilmember Roberts Absent 
Vice Mayor Zemaitis  Yes 
Mayor Howell   Yes 
 
Motion to approve consent agenda passed by roll call vote. 

 
2.  Council Approval to Enter into an Agreement with Special Magistrate 

 Consensus provided 
 

3.  Fundbalance Account Creation for Park Amenities 
 Consensus provided 
 

4.  Personnel Addition Request, Recreation Support Specialist 
 Consensus not provided 
 

5.  Spacecraft: Free Art Activities for the Children of Kenneth City 
Consensus provided 

 
 

 
Manager Report 
 
 1.  Forward Pinellas 

The Manager discussed the Town’s agreement with Forward Pinellas and 
which expires September 2022. The manager intends to work with the Town 
Attorney to renegotiate the agreement. The manager listed the type of work 
the Town would be doing with Planner, Nousheen Rahman and Rodney 
Chatman. 
 

2.  Kmart Property 
 Manager Cavalli provided updates on the development of the Kmart 

property. The Home Store will soon begin a 120-day remodeling project. A 
Sprouts Grocery Store will be the second stage of the property 
development.  

 
3. Lake Charles Aerator 
 The Town is working with Justin Keller of Advanced Engineering to make 

these changes.  
 
 



 
4.  Budgeting 
 The manager shared that some preliminary discussions are occurring to 

prepare for the upcoming budgeting season. 
 
5.  Administrative Policy 
 The manager discussed the current administrative policy and some edits he 

made to clean up the document since it was last executed and approved by 
council. There were concerns brought up by councilmember Noble stating 
she did not agree with the way the policy is currently written. A discussion 
ensued. The Policy will be revisited and discussed again as an Action Item. 

 
6. Chapter 54 Update 
 Pete stated, “we’re faced with an emergency situation in Unit 12.” The 

Police Department reports issues with residents parking on the side of the 
road making it difficult or impossible for emergency vehicles to pass. 
Manager Cavalli shared that he is working with the Engineer to put together 
a conceptual drawing of a suggested solution.  

 
 The manager shared that he put together a team to review and make the 

suggested revisions to Chapter 54. He concluded that he would provide a 
progress report at the April Council Meeting. 

 
 He shared that he is working with the Engineer on stormwater and 

watershed related issues that are pressing in nature. He stated he and the 
engineer would provide more information at the next Council Meeting. 

 
7. Project Management Software 
 The manager reviewed the roles and jobs he has delegated through a 

project management software. He gave a quick overview of ongoing 
projects at the various departments. 

 
 

H. Department Reports 
 

Public Safety 
• Chief Vieno shared the February traffic statistics (education, citations 

and warnings).  
• 58th Street no truck sign (education phase), partnering with Winn Dixie to 

reroute their trucks to 46th Street as opposed to 58th street. 
• Officers attended an annual in-service training 
• Chief Vieno discussed the Spring Festival, Movie in the Park, 4th of July 
• He gave a brief synopsis of the March 2nd fire at the Ashford Bayside 

apartments at 56th Avenue and 58th Street 
 

 
 



Fire Department 
Pinellas Park Fire Chief, Brett Schlatterer provided the February stats and a 
summary of the Ashford Bayside Apartment fire. 
 
Department of Public Works 

 DPW supervisor provided updates on the projects they are currently working 
on. He discussed the Florida friendly landscaping, ditch clean outs and the 
Spring Festival. He provided examples of how he has prioritized being fiscally 
conservative and has been able to save the Town money. He discussed how 
he manages personnel and strategic use of their time.  

 
 There was a discussion. 
 
I. Officer Reports 
 

Town Clerk  
No report. 
 
Town Attorney 
Attorney Mora provided a brief update on legislative updates. 
 
Code-Enforcement 
Dave Wysong, Code Enforcement Officer provided updates to the Town on 
what he has been working on including Code Enforcement statistics for 
February. There was a brief discussion. 
 

J. Mayor/Council Comments 
Councilmember Noble commented on the CPA’s contract and how much he is 
charging the Town. Manager Cavalli provided an explanation that even though 
the CPA was contracted before his time, it was his understanding that the Town 
needed a professional CPA to help best manage the Town’s accounting efforts.  

Attorney Mora stated that the current, more substantial contract was executed 
to help the Town during the transition from the previous Town Administration in 
the Spring of 2021 but that there was an initial agreement the Town entered 
with the CPA back in 2017.  

There was a discussion. Councilmember Noble read language from the 
Municode and went on to describe a duo- Clerk/Accountant hybrid position. 
She asked the Clerk where she is, in the process of taking over the Town’s 
accounting responsibilities. Attorney Mora reminded the Council that one of the 
challenges they faced during the Clerk recruitment process was to find a clerk 
with the desired financial expertise, “in the modern clerk landscape.” Attorney 
Mora said, “one of the things we discussed, and as it was explained in our 
recruitment documents and otherwise was that while it was a duty, it was 
interpreted to mean keeping those documents and ensuring those documents 
are secured and will be produced upon request. It does not necessarily, by its 
plainest terms, mean that that person has to generate the report, calculate the 



report, or refrain from delegating any of that. While she is certainly responsible 
should you request, that that record be provided, the Clerk provides that. When 
the council was recruiting its clerk that’s one of the ways that we had 
communicated that duty to candidates.”  

Councilmember Noble inquired again about the Clerk taking over accounting 
duties. She asked the clerk “where are you at in learning how to do these 
things?” She went on to state that the Town is “double paying” when it pays for 
both an accountant and a Town Clerk.  

There were further discussions regarding division of labor and the CPA’s 
current payrate. Manager Cavalli provided some information regarding the 
scope of services the CPA has provided, beyond basic bookkeeping.  

Vice Mayor Zemaitis shared that she recalled that the Town could not find 
someone with the combined clerical/accounting experience or expertise. She 
said that she did not feel the clerk should have to become an accountant, as 
councilmembers were all aware that she was not an accountant when she was 
appointed. Attorney Mora stated that a Clerk certification does not involve 
accounting. There was discussion regarding negotiating a more competitive 
contract with a Certified Public Accountant.   

Mayor Howell directed a question towards the Supervisor of Public Works 
regarding the contracted streetsweepers. After a brief discussion, Manager 
Cavalli stated that street sweeping is a minimal environmental requirement 
determined by state environmental agencies. Mayor Howell asked that 
Manager Cavalli revisit the current contract with the Town’s streetsweeper. 

Councilmember Noble asked Manager Cavalli to shop around for a new health 
insurance provider for the Town employees. He responded that our current 
contract with Public Risk Management states that we need to provide a 12-
month minimum notification. Councilmember Noble asked that he initiate this 
process immediately. 

Councilmember Noble said she “looked at the General Fund at our electric bill 
for our three buildings and we probably pay at least $30,000 a year to Duke 
Energy.” She asked that the Town look into investing in solar power panels for 
Town buildings. There was a discussion about “going Green.” Councilmember 
Noble said “we could take $30k from the Covid Money” to pay for the solar 
panels. Vice Mayor Zemaitis said she supports the initiative to Go Green. 
Mayor Howell agreed.   

Councilmember Noble inquired of the Town Manager regarding a task she gave 
him to renegotiate current Town Contracts. Attorney Mora shared insight into 
the extensive process to the procurement of contracted services. Attorney Mora 
said “at your size and staffing, running multiple concurrent RFPs is very 
challenging from a staff allocation standpoint.” Attorney Mora concluded that he 



is working closely with the Town Manager to be apprised of when contracts end 
and what needs to be done.  
 

 
K. Adjournment 
 Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Vice Mayor Zemaitis 
 Second was made by Councilmember Cummings 
 All in favor 
 Meeting was adjourned at 8:48pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice: This meeting and all City Council Meetings, Special Workshops, Hearings and 
Committee Meetings are posted in advance on the Town’s letterboards as well as the 
Town’s website, newsletters and Facebook pages.  



QUOTE DATE: 
QUOTE NO: 

03/16/2022 
32732229 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PAGE 1 of 3 

 

GOVERNMENT - PRICE QUOTATION 
 

ACCELA GOVERNMENT AT CARAHSOFT  
11493 SUNSET HILLS ROAD | SUITE 100 | RESTON, VIRGINIA 20190 

PHONE (703) 871-8500 | FAX (703) 871-8505 | TOLL FREE (888) 66CARAH 
WWW.CARAHSOFT.COM 

 
 

 
 

TO: Pete Cavali 
Town Manager 

Town of Kenneth City 
600 54th Ave N 
Kenneth City, FL 33709 USA 

 

FROM: Casey Oesterle 

Carahsoft Technology Corp. 

11493 Sunset Hills Road 
Reston, Virginia 20190 

 
EMAIL: 

PHONE: 

cvallip@kennethcityfl.org 

(727) 498-8948 

EMAIL: Casey.Oesterle@carahsoft.com 

PHONE: (571) 662-3010 FAX: (703) 871-8505 

 
 

 

TERMS: GSA Schedule No: 47QSWA18D008F 

Term: August 22, 2018 - August 21, 2023 

QUOTE NO: 32732229 

QUOTE DATE: 03/16/2022 
FTIN: 52-2189693 

Shipping Point: FOB Destination 
Credit Cards: VISA/MasterCard/AMEX 

Remit To: Same as Above 
Payment Terms: Net 30 (On Approved Credit) 

Cage Code: 1P3C5 
DUNS No: 088365767 
Business Size: Other than Small 

Sales Tax May Apply 

QUOTE EXPIRES: 
RFQ NO: 
SHIPPING: 
TOTAL PRICE: 

 
 

TOTAL QUOTE: 

03/31/2022 

 
ESD 

$53,040.00 

 
 

 
$53,040.00 

 
 

LINE NO. PART NO. DESCRIPTION - QUOTE PRICE QTY EXTENDED PRICE 
 

 
 YEAR 1 ACCELA SAAS + REDMARK SERVICES  

1 SS21000MU305I-120 Multi-Solution - Accela Annual $2,880.00 GSA 8 $23,040.00 
  Accela Building and Planning     

  Accela Inc - SS21000MU305I     

6 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 9.375 $1,875.00 
  Deliverable 1: Project Initiation     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

7 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 0 $0.00 
  Deliverable 2: Accela Civic Platform System Setup     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

8 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 48.125 $9,625.00 
  Deliverable 3: To-Be Anaylsis Session and Configuration     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

9 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 12.5 $2,500.00 
  Deliverable 4: Business Process Valiation and Automation     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

10 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 10 $2,000.00 
  Deliverable 5: Accela Citizen Access Configuration     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

11 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 0 $0.00 
  Financial Interface     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

12 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 0 $0.00 
  Payment Processor     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

13 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $199.58 GSA 0 $0.00 
  Reports     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

14 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 0 $0.00 
  Accela GIS Configuration (if necessary)     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

 

 

http://www.carahsoft.com/
mailto:cvallip@kennethcityfl.org
mailto:Casey.Oesterle@carahsoft.com


QUOTE DATE: 
QUOTE NO: 

03/16/2022 
32732229 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PAGE 2 of 3 

 

GOVERNMENT - PRICE QUOTATION 
 

ACCELA GOVERNMENT AT CARAHSOFT  
11493 SUNSET HILLS ROAD | SUITE 100 | RESTON, VIRGINIA 20190 

PHONE (703) 871-8500 | FAX (703) 871-8505 | TOLL FREE (888) 66CARAH 
WWW.CARAHSOFT.COM 

 
 

LINE NO. PART NO. DESCRIPTION - QUOTE PRICE QTY EXTENDED PRICE 
 

15 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) 

Accela Mobile Configuration (if necessary) 
Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM 

$200.00 GSA 0 $0.00 

16 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 15 $3,000.00 
  Deliverable 6: Adminstrative and Technical Training     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

17 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 15 $3,000.00 
  Deliverable 7: Daily User Training     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

18 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 11.875 $2,375.00 
  Deliverable 8: User Acceptance Testing (UAT)     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

19 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 12.5 $2,500.00 
  Deliverable 9: Production Support     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

20 CON-PM Project Manager (Per Hour) $200.00 GSA 15.625 $3,125.00 
  Deliverable 10: post Deployment Support and Transition to     

  CRC     

  Carahsoft Technology Corporation - CON-PM     

  SUBTOTAL:    
$53,040.00 

 

TOTAL PRICE: $53,040.00 

 

 
 

TOTAL QUOTE: $53,040.00 

 

SUGGESTED OPTIONS 

LINE NO. PART NO. DESCRIPTION - QUOTE PRICE QTY EXTENDED PRICE 
 

 
 YEAR 2 ACCELA SAAS  

2 SS21000MU305R1- 
120 

Multi-Solution - Accela Annual (1st Renewal Term) 
Accela Building and Planning 

Accela Inc - SS21000MU305R1 

$2,966.40 GSA 8 $23,731.20 

  YEAR 2 ACCELA SAAS SUBTOTAL:    $23,731.20 

  YEAR 3 ACCELA SAAS     

3 SS21000MU305R2- 
120 

Multi-Solution - Accela Annual (2nd Renewal Term) 
Accela Building and Planning 

Accela Inc - SS21000MU305R2 

$3,055.39 GSA 8 $24,443.12 

  YEAR 3 ACCELA SAAS SUBTOTAL:    $24,443.12 

  YEAR 4 ACCELA SAAS     

4 SS21000MU305R3- 
120 

Multi-Solution - Accela Annual (3rd Renewal Term) 
Accela Building and Planning 

Accela Inc - SS21000MU305R3 

$3,147.06 GSA 8 $25,176.48 

  YEAR 4 ACCELA SAAS SUBTOTAL:    $25,176.48 

  YEAR 5 ACCELA SAAS     

5 SS21000MU305R4- 
120 

Multi-Solution - Accela Annual (4th Renewal Term) 
Accela Building and Planning 

Accela Inc - SS21000MU305R4 

$3,241.47 GSA 8 $25,931.76 

  YEAR 5 ACCELA SAAS SUBTOTAL:    $25,931.76 

http://www.carahsoft.com/


QUOTE DATE: 
QUOTE NO: 

03/16/2022 
32732229 

CONFIDENTIAL 
PAGE 3 of 3 

 

GOVERNMENT - PRICE QUOTATION 
 

ACCELA GOVERNMENT AT CARAHSOFT  
11493 SUNSET HILLS ROAD | SUITE 100 | RESTON, VIRGINIA 20190 

PHONE (703) 871-8500 | FAX (703) 871-8505 | TOLL FREE (888) 66CARAH 
WWW.CARAHSOFT.COM 

 
 

LINE NO. PART NO. DESCRIPTION - QUOTE PRICE QTY EXTENDED PRICE 
 

SUGGESTED SUBTOTAL: $99,282.56 
 

 
Use of Accela Products and Services: All use of the services specified in this document shall be governed, as applicable by th e Accela 
Subscription Services and Support Agreement under GSA MAS and the Accela License Agreement under GSA MAS attached hereto. 

 

*5 Year Option 

"Accela SaaS software will be configured using Accela partner Redmark Technologies. http://redmarktech.com/index.php 

"Customer may terminate the Accela Subscription Agreement for convenience in accordance with GSAR 552.212-4(l). Under such 
termination, Accela will receive the percentage of the contract price reflecting the percentage of the work performed prior to the notice 
of termination, plus reasonable charges Accela can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Customer using its standard record keeping 
system, have resulted from the termination. Any overpayment by Customer will be refunded to Customer." 

http://www.carahsoft.com/
http://redmarktech.com/index.php


© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 1  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Statement of Work 

 

 
Town of Kenneth City, FL 

February 23, 2022 
 

Version 1.0 
 
 
 
 

RedMark Technologies, LLC. 
2385 NW Executive Center Dr. 

Suite 100 

Boca Raton, FL 33428 
Tel: 561-210-5141 
Fax: 561-892-8022 

 
Carahsoft Technology Corporation 

11493 Sunset Hills Rd 
Suite 100 

Reston, VA 20190 
Tel: 571-662-3010 

Fax: 703-871-8505 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 2  

  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS........................................................................................................................................................2 

DOCUMENT CONTROL .......................................................................................................................................................4 

OVERVIEW .........................................................................................................................................................................5 

SERVICES DESCRIPTION ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 
PURPOSE ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

PROJECT TIMELINE ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 6 
CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTORS ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 
CHANGE ORDERS .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

WORK DESCRIPTION .........................................................................................................................................................8 

STAGE 1 – INITIATION........................................................................................................................................................ 8 
DELIVERABLE 1: PROJECT INITIATION .......................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
DELIVERABLE 2: ACCELA CIVIC PLATFORM SYSTEM SETUP ...................................................................................................................................... 9 
STAGES 2 & 3 – ANALYSIS AND CONFIGURATION .............................................................................................................. 9 
DELIVERABLE 3: TO-BE ANALYSIS SESSIONS AND CONFIGURATION ...................................................................................................................... 10 
STAGE 4 – BUILD..............................................................................................................................................................11 
DELIVERABLE 4: BUSINESS PROCESS VALIDATION AND AUTOMATION.................................................................................................................... 11 
DELIVERABLE 5: ACCELA CITIZEN ACCESS CONFIGURATION................................................................................................................................... 13 
FINANCIAL INTERFACE.................................................................................................................................................................................................. 13 
PAYMENT PROCESSOR ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 14 
REPORTS ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
ACCELA GIS CONFIGURATION (IF NECESSARY) ..........................................................................................................................14 
ACCELA MOBILE CONFIGURATION (IF NECESSARY)......................................................................................................................15 
STAGE 5 – READINESS.....................................................................................................................................................15 

DELIVERABLE 6: ADMINISTRATIVE AND TECHNICAL TRAINING ................................................................................................................................. 15 
DELIVERABLE 7: DAILY USER TRAINING .................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
DELIVERABLE 8: USER ACCEPTANCE TESTING (UAT) .................................................................................................................17 
STAGE 6 – DEPLOY ..........................................................................................................................................................18 
DELIVERABLE 9 PRODUCTION SUPPORT .................................................................................................................................................................... 18 
DELIVERABLE 10: POST DEPLOYMENT SUPPORT AND TRANSITION TO CRC ....................................................................................18 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE ...................................................................................................................................................... 20 

EXPENSES..................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 20 
CONTRACT SUM ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 21 
TERMS ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 22 

PROJECT RESOURCES AND LOCATION OF WORK .................................................................................................................................................... 22 
WORK LOCATION.......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 22 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 3  

AGENCY RESOURCES .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 23 
REDMARK RESOURCES ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 24 
ACCEPTANCE ................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 26 

APPENDIX A - ACCELA IMPLEMENTATION METHODOLOGY ........................................................................................... 27 

IMPLEMENTATION LIFE CYCLE ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 27 
INITIATION...................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 27 
TO-BE ANALYSIS .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 27 
SOLUTION FOUNDATION .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 28 
BUILD............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 28 
READINESS ................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

DEPLOY ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

APPENDIX B – DATA CONVERSION ASSUMPTIONS (IF APPLICABLE) ............................................................................. 30 

GENERAL INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS FOR HISTORICAL CONVERSIONS .................................................................................................... 30 
DATA CONVERSION ASSUMPTIONS............................................................................................................................................................................. 30 
STANDARD DOCUMENT MIGRATION............................................................................................................................................................................ 31 

APPENDIX C – DELIVERABLES ACCEPTANCE FORM (SAMPLE) ..................................................................................... 32 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 4  

DOCUMENT CONTROL 
 

Date Author Version Change Reference 

02/23/2022 W. Chavez 1.0 Initial draft. 

 
 
 

(Rest of page intentionally left blank) 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 5  

  
 

OVERVIEW 

Congratulations on your selection of Accela, Inc., and their enterprise suite of industry leading software. The 
implementation of Accela products is designed specifically to meet the specific requirements and budget defined by 
Town of Kenneth City, FL (“Agency”). RedMark Technologies, LLC. (“RedMark”), an Accela Certified Services  
Implementation Partner and Carahsoft Technology Corporation (“Carahsoft”), will utilize a best practice 

Implementation Methodology, based on previous client interactions and industry knowledge, to promote a successful 
project that will meet the Agency’s objectives. The following Statement of Work will detail how RedMark Services will 
implement the software you have purchased, including the major milestones and deliverables that will ensure your 
success. 

 
RedMark is committed to providing a superior software solution, and deployment of the software, for the current and 
future needs of the Agency. RedMark will work with Agency staff to optimize Accela’s portfolio of software, best 
practices, and customer experience to enable the Agency to successfully deploy the Accela Civic Platform software 

and meet its functionality, timing, and cost requirements. This Statement of Work (“SOW”) dated February 23, 2022, 
sets forth a scope and definition of the consulting/professional services, work and/or project (collectively, the 
“Services”) to be provided by RedMark to Agency. 

 
SERVICES DESCRIPTION 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this document is to detail the specific activities, deliverables, roles and responsibilities, and 
acceptance criteria that comprise the implementation of the Accela Civic Platform with the Accela Citizen Access, 
Accela GIS (if applicable), and Accela Mobile (if applicable) for the Agency. RedMark will provide professional 

services for implementation of the above modules and products per the Work Description section detailed henceforth. 
The following Agency departments comprise the organization scope of the implementation described herein: 

• Building 

• Planning 

• Code Enforcement 

 
The number of workflows and record types considered in scope for this project are as follows: 

• Up to 8 workflows 

• Up to 25 record types 
 

The workflows and record types may be allocated and used by the above referenced departments in a manner 
defined by the Agency. 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

The term of this project is 6 months and 1 phase(s). 

 
Any delays (e.g., Change in staff level/availability, missed deadlines) in the Project Timeline which by mutual 
agreement were created by the Agency will result in an increase in the duration of the project will require a Change 
Order to reimburse RedMark for the additional costs associated with the delay, including but not limited to additional 
hours for project management, deliverable development, and review. 

 
Upon execution of this SOW, the parties will collaborate to determine a start date for Services to be rendered. Upon 
initiation of these Services, the RedMark Project Manager will work with the Agency to collaboratively define a 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 6  

  
 

baseline project schedule. Given the fact that project schedules are working documents that change over the course 
of the project, the RedMark Project Manager will work closely with Agency to update, monitor, agree, and 
communicate any modifications. 

 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

RedMark will provide a project manager for services throughout the implementation in order to plan and monitor 
execution of the project in accordance with deliverables outlined in the Statement of Work. To support the 
implementation of the Accela Civic Platform software at the Agency, RedMark will provide Project Management 
services throughout the project. Generally, these services include the following: 

• Project plan management using Microsoft Project, 

• Project document management using hosted Microsoft SharePoint project site, Dropbox, or similar solution, 

• Issue log management and escalation, 

• Status reporting, 

• Change order management, 

• Project workspace management, 

• Resource management, 

• Executive project oversight and quality assurance. 
 

By mutual agreement, some project management tasks may be shared between the RedMark Project Manager and 

the Agency Project Manager. 
 

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTORS 

In order to successfully execute the services described herein, there are several critical success factors for the project 
that must be closely monitored and managed by the stakeholders. These factors are critical in setting expectations 
between the Agency and RedMark, identifying and monitoring project risks, and promoting strong project  
communication. 

 

• Knowledge Transfer – While RedMark cannot guarantee specific expertise for Agency staff as a result of 
participating in the project, RedMark will make all reasonable efforts to transfer knowledge to the Agency. It 
is critical that Agency personnel participate in the analysis, configuration, and deployment of Accela Civic 

Platform in order to transfer knowledge to the Agency. Once Post-Production assistance tasks are completed 
by RedMark Services, the Agency assumes all day-to-day operations of Accela Civic Platform outside of the 
Support and Maintenance Agreement. The Service and Maintenance Agreement does not cover any Agency 
manipulation of implemented scripts, reports, interfaces, and adapters. Key knowledge transfer areas 

include: 

• Configuration 

• Scripting 

• Batch scripts 

• Interfaces 

• Event Management Scripts 

• Reports and Forms 

 

• Dedicated Agency Participation – RedMark fully understands that Agency staff members have daily 
responsibilities that will compete with the amount of time that can be dedicated to the Accela Civic Platform 

implementation project. However, it is critical that the Agency acknowledges that its staff must be actively 
involved throughout the entire duration of Services as defined in the Project Plan. RedMark will communicate 
insufficient participation of Agency and RedMark resources through Project Status Reports with real and 
potential impacts to the project timeline. RedMark will work the project sponsors and department leaders to 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 7  

  
 

determine appropriate team member involvement. This could rand from full-time during early analysis 
meetings to part-time during the technical implementation phase. 

 

• Deliverable Acceptance Process - Implementation services for the above products are formalized through 
the deliverables defined in this document. Upon completion of each deliverable according to the acceptance 
criteria defined herein, RedMark will provide the Agency with a Deliverable Acceptance Form to formalize 
acceptance and completion. The Deliverable Acceptance Form is subsequently signed by the appropriate 

Agency contact, as defined in the Project Charter, and faxed/scanned/emailed or hand delivered to RedMark. 
Please refer to Appendix C to view a sample Deliverable Acceptance Form. RedMark respectfully requests 
prompt attention to the processing of all Deliverable Acceptance Forms, as adherence to this timely process 
directly impacts the ability to complete the project in the desired timeframe. In order to prevent delays in the 

project schedule, for all Deliverables where no response time is specifically identified I the SOW, a three (3) 
business day acceptance period is assumed. 

 

• Accela Implementation Methodology – Accela’s successful, proven, implementation methodology is crucial 
to the project success. Accela’s Civic Platform software and customer base is a niche market and as such 
the implementation methodology may differ from other consulting firms and software packages. It is 
imperative to project success that the Agency is willing to adhere/adopt to the Accela Implementation 
Methodology. 

 

CHANGE ORDERS 

In order to make a change to the scope of Professional Services in this SOW, Agency must submit a written request to 
RedMark specifying the proposed changes in detail. RedMark shall submit to Agency an estimate of the charges and 

the anticipated changes in the delivery schedule that will result from the proposed change in the Professional Services 
(“Change Order”). RedMark shall continue performing the Professional Services in accordance with the SOW until the 
parties agree in writing on the change in scope of work, scheduling, and fees. Any Change Order shall be agreed to 
by the parties in writing prior to implementation of the Change Order. If RedMark’s effort changes due to changes in 

timing, roles, responsibilities, assumptions, scope, etc. or if additional support hours are required, a change order will 
be created that details these changes, and impact to project and cost (if any). Any change order shall be signed by 
RedMark and Agency prior to commencing any activities defined in the change order. 

 

PROJECTS PUT ON HOLD 

It is understood that sometimes Agency priorities are revised requiring the Agency to place the Accela implementation 
on hold. The Agency must send a formal written request sent to RedMark in order to put the project on hold. A 
project can be on hold for up to 90 days without invoking the termination clause (see Services Agreement). After that 
time, RedMark can choose to cancel the rest of the Statement of Work. To finish the project will require a new 
Statement of Work at new pricing. 

 
When a project is put on hold, at minimum, RedMark will need to draft a Change Order to keep some of the RedMark 

project manager’s time engaged to monitor progress and to resource the project once it comes off hold.  Other 
Change Order items may be needed as a result of the delay. When a project goes on hold, project resources will be 
re-deployed and RedMark will need a forty-five (45) calendar day notice to re-staff the project. Resumption of the 
project will be dependent upon RedMark resourcing timelines. 

 
Should the Agency become non-responsive to RedMark communications for a term of 30 calendar days regarding 
continuance of the project work, RedMark can choose to cancel the remainder of the Statement of Work. To finish the 
project will require a new Statement of Work at new pricing at the current rates. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 8  

  
 

WORK DESCRIPTION 
The following section describes the specific activities and tasks that will be executed to meet the business objectives 
and business requirements of the Agency. In support of the implementation effort as described above, RedMark will 
provide the following detailed implementation services. For each deliverable, a description is provided as well as 
criteria for acceptance of the deliverable. 

 STAGE 1 – INITIATION  

DELIVERABLE 1: PROJECT INITIATION 

Project initiation is an opportunity to ensure the project starts in a well-organized, structured fashion while re- 
confirming the Agency and RedMark expectations regarding the implementation. This Deliverable is comprised of 
project planning activities, core project management documents and templates and the first on-site meeting conducted 
between the Agency and RedMark after the signing of the Statement of Work. 

 
In conjunction with the Agency representatives, RedMark will perform the following tasks: 

• Finalize staffing for the project teams. Guidelines and recommendations for the Agency project staffing are 
addressed in the Project Staffing section of this document. 

• Conduct a formal onsite Kickoff meeting. The objective of this meeting is to review the purpose of the project 
and discuss the project scope, roles and responsibilities, deliverables, and timeline. 

• Establish Communication Plan and project logistics including escalation, status reporting, issue/risk 
management, work locations, etc. 

• Establish schedule of Steering Committee meetings. 

• Review and agree on Project Status Report Template format. 

• Finalize and document formal deliverable signoff procedures, identify team members that will be responsible 
for signoff from the Agency and RedMark. 

• Review infrastructure requirements and preparation (with designated Agency technical staff). 

• Finalize an integrated project plan that includes resource allocation for all tasks (in cooperation with the 
Agency Project Manager). 

• Create the project (SharePoint, Dropbox or similar) site and load all standard, current documentation. 
 

The Project Kickoff Meeting includes a formal presentation by the project team to review project objectives, 
methodology, timeline, roles and responsibilities, risks, and other key project elements with project stakeholders. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ Baseline Project Plan 
➢ Project Status Report Template 

➢ Project SharePoint Site 
➢ Project Kickoff Presentation 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to Agency’s request for information. 

• Coordinate project planning activities. 

• Communicate the Accela Implementation Methodology that will be used by RedMark to deliver Services. 

• Complete Baseline Project Plan, Project Status Report Template, and Project Kickoff Presentation 
deliverables with input from appropriate Agency resources. 

 
Agency Responsibilities: 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 9  

  
 

• Identify and set expectations with key resources and subject matter experts for ongoing participation in the 
project. 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to RedMark’s requests for project planning input and meeting 
logistics requests. 

• Provide meeting facilities for Project Kickoff and other onsite activities. 

• Include Project Sponsor in Project Kickoff Meeting. 
 

Acceptance Criteria: 

• Review and acceptance of the Project Status Report Template 

• Review and acceptance of the Baseline Project Plan 

• Completion of the Project Kickoff Meeting 

 

DELIVERABLE 2: ACCELA CIVIC PLATFORM SYSTEM SETUP 

This Deliverable is defined as the setup of the Accela Civic Platform software in the Accela Cloud environment such 
that Agecy can log into the system and verify software is available. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ Setup of the Accela Civic Platform software, development (DEV) and production (TEST) environments, in the 

Accela Cloud 

➢ Demonstration of the operational Accela Civic Platform environment 

 
Specifically, RedMark will perform the following tasks within the support environment: 

• Perform a remote system check of the system 

• Demonstrate that the Accela Civic Platform applications are operational 

• Ensure all tasks are completed on Accela’s side for VPN tunnel with Agency for any necessary integration. 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to Agency request for information 

• Consult with Agency resources to provide technical input and answer technical questions related to the 
requirements for Accela Civic Platform. 

 

Agency Responsibilities: 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to RedMark’s request for information 

• Make available the appropriate Agency users to validate system is setup and available. 

• Complete tasks related to setup of VPN tunnel to Accela environment. 

 
Acceptance Criteria: 

• Confirmation of ability to log into the Accela Civic Platform software. 

 

 STAGES 2 & 3 – ANALYSIS AND CONFIGURATION  
To-Be Analysis is comprised of the activities required to define the Accela Civic Platform Solution Foundation for the 
Agency. The key output of the process is the system tested and accepted system configuration. RedMark will provide 
professional services to develop the Accela Civic Platform Solution Foundation in accordance with requirements 
established and agreed upon during the analysis sessions. RedMark will produce a detailed system generated 

configuration report that represents the entire foundation of the system, for each relevant module. This document will 
be delivered for review with the completed solution. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 10  

  
 

 

The sessions will include detailed information on the Agency’s business processes to be configured in the Accela 
Civic Platform Solution Foundation, including the following topics: 

 
➢ Process Overview 
➢ Intake Process, user defined and required fields 
➢ Required/Optional Review Tasks 

➢ Issuance requirements 
➢ Inspection Types, scheduling and checklists 
➢ Workflow and processing requirements 
➢ Fee’s – types, processing and schedules 

 
The sessions do not include detailed information related to the following deliverables as they are dependent on the 
completion of the Solution Foundation milestone. 

 

• Deliverable 4: Business Process Validation and Automation 

 

DELIVERABLE 3: TO-BE ANALYSIS SESSIONS AND CONFIGURATION 

RedMark will work closely with designated Agency personnel and will conduct analysis sessions to capture the “to-be” 
required business processes. RedMark will then configure the system and confirm such configuration with Agency 
personnel. 

 

In conjunction with the Agency representatives, RedMark will perform the following tasks: 

• Review and understand existing business processes intended for migration into Accela Civic Platform. 

• Review the developed business process as a basis for configuration in Accela Civic Platform’s workflow tool. 

• Assist the Agency in streamlining existing business processes for fit into Accela Civic Platform. 

• Collect employee names and associated roles and identify user group setups. 

• Review the collected document intake requirements, forms, and data fields for each process. 

• Review the collected document output requirements (documents/letters/reports). 

• Review the collected document fees, fee schedules, and collection procedures for each process. 

• Review the collected document all required inspections and inspection result options for each type. 

 
RedMark’s Project Manager will coordinate and schedule the Analysis Sessions in conjunction with the Agency Project  
Manager and according to the agreed upon Project Plan. In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for 
this deliverable: 

 
➢ To-Be Analysis data gathering activities including workshops, interviews and web conferencing sessions. 
➢ Configuration of the system per Agency personnel specifications. 
➢ System generated Configuration report. 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to Agency’s request for information. 

• Interview staff in order to understand existing business processes. 

• Conduct to-be analysis sessions to capture the required business processes to be automated within the 
system. 

• Conduct meetings via email, web conference, phone, and in person to gather and validate analysis input. 
 

Agency Responsibilities: 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 11  

  
 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to RedMark’s requests for information. 

• Make available the appropriate Agency key users and content experts to provide required information, 
participate in the configuration analysis and verify the accuracy of the documented workflows, input/output 
formats, and data elements. 

• Provide any existing business process documentation, including process flows; fee schedules; commonly 
used applications, reports and forms; and other relevant information. 

• Schedule participants and meeting locations for analysis activities. 

 
Acceptance Criteria: 

• Completion of To-Be Analysis Session and Configuration. 

 

 STAGE 4 – BUILD  
The Build stage includes data conversions, development of interfaces, development of Accela Event Manager Scripts 
and custom report development. It comprises all of the additional critical activities outside of solution foundation that 
has been configured for the Agency. Similar to the Configuration Stage, it is critical that appropriate agency 

representatives are involved in each step of the process to ensure success. 

 
Data conversion of historic/legacy data from Agency systems is a critical activity for the success of this project. The 
RedMark team is highly experienced in planning for and executing these activities and will work closely with Agency 
staff to ensure a successful transition of data. Specifically, the RedMark team will work with Agency to understand the 

data sources, how they are used, where their data will be stored in Accela Civic Platform and the quality of that data. 
Often multiple sources store and manage similar information and decisions need to be made about the authoritative 
source. It is also common to find that data sources have not had strong controls and the accuracy is questionable or 
there is missing data. There are techniques and tools that RedMark may recommend understanding the current state 

of Agency data so that decisions can be made about data quality and what to convert. Upon completion of the data 
analysis, mapping of historical/legacy data sources may begin with Accela’s mapping tool and conversion iterations 
performed as outlined in the Project Plan. Accela provides release notes during these conversion tests to verify data is 
being transferred correctly (e.g., number of records and expected values in fields). 

 
RedMark will lead the conversion effort and specifically assist in the following areas: data mapping, script 
development for conversion, assistance in data testing and validation, and with the planning and execution of the final 

data conversion. For conversions, it is expected and anticipated that the Agency will provide resources 
knowledgeable with the historical data to assist in the data migration/conversion effort. 

 
The required data mapping effort will be a conducted by RedMark personnel with assistance from the Agency. Once 

the data mapping has been defined, RedMark will ask that a representative of the Agency sign off on the data maps. 
RedMark will be responsible for the data conversion programs to load data from the staging tables to the Accela Civic 
Platform database. PLEASE REFER TO APPENDIX B FOR SPECIFIC ASSUMPTIONS AND PARAMETERS 
RELATED TO ACCELA ’S CONVERSION APPROACH. 

 
 

DELIVERABLE 4: BUSINESS PROCESS VALIDATION AND AUTOMATION 

During the configuration analysis phase of the implementation project, RedMark will identify opportunities to 
supplement the Accela Civic Platform base functionality via Event Manager Script Engine (EMSE) script development. 
RedMark will work with key Agency project stakeholders to identify the business rules/processes to be automated. 
RedMark will work with Agency to identify desired EMSE functionality, and subsequently will help prioritize the 

scripting needs to determine which scripts will be developed by RedMark, and which scripts can be developed by the 
Agency. The scripts developed by RedMark can be used as models whereby agency staff can develop and modify 
additional EMSE scripts as needed. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 12  

  
 

 

Representative examples of business processes that could be automated by a script listed below. Note that the below 
list is an example list only and not a list of the actual script(s) that will be developed for the project. 

 

• Closing workflows based on inspection results 

o Use Case: Final Inspection is complete, update workflow; 

• Automatic assessment of complex fee calculations 

o Use Case: Auto fee calculation, assessment, and invoicing upon application submittal; 

• Increment a date based on workflow status change 

o Use Case: Expiration on Permit is made current every time a workflow is updated; 

• Preventing inspections based on various criteria 

o Use Case: Depending on workflow / application status, do not allow an inspection to take place. 

Prior to the development of a script, the Agency will approve a design specification document that will be created 
jointly by the Agency and RedMark. The approved document will be used as a basis for determining completion and 
approval of the deliverable. An allowance of 20 hours has been allocated for Business Process Validation and 

Automation. Additional scripts required by the Agency can be added through a Change Order. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ Prioritized list of requirements that require Automation 
➢ Specification documents for each required Automation 

➢ Demonstration of completed Automations in development or test environments per the specifications 

document(s) 
 

RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Work with Agency staff to identify potential uses of EMSE scripting. 

• Assist with development of list of desired EMSE functionality. 

• Aid the Agency in prioritizing which scripts will be developed by RedMark. 

• Develop EMSE scripts based on the specifications. 

• Demonstrate functionality of scripts per specifications. 

 
Agency Responsibilities: 

• Allocate the time for qualified business and technical experts for the script requirements sessions that are 
critical to the project success. 

• Identify resources that will learn EMSE scripting tolls and approaches for ongoing maintenance. 

• Prioritize desired EMSE functionality to determine which scripts RedMark will develop. 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to RedMark’s request for information. 

• Verify the Event Script Specification meets the intended business requirement. 

• Allocate the time for qualified personnel to test the script for acceptance. 

• Ensure that the data populates successfully according to the script requirements document. 

 

Acceptance Criteria: 

• Review and acceptance of design document with written sign-off from the Agency. 

• Demonstrate a developed script within the system. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 13  

  
 

DELIVERABLE 5: ACCELA CITIZEN ACCESS CONFIGURATION 

This deliverable includes setup and configuration of Accela Citizen Access (ACA) on the Agency Dev or Test site. 
RedMark will work with the Agency representatives to assess and implement Accela Citizen Access to extend certain 
aspects of the internal Accela Civic Platform configuration for use by the general public. 

 
Features available for configuration include: 

 

• Record Research 

• Permit Application and Issuance 

• License Renewals 

• Inspection Request Entry 

• Inspection Results Research 

• Status tracking 
 

In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ Accela Citizen Access Configuration Specifications Document (MS Word) 

➢ Configure ACA for [List Languages] language versions 

➢ Configuration of Online Record types in Accela Civic Platform 
➢ Accela Citizen Access Admin Training 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Setup Accela Citizen Access in Dev and Test environments. 

• Assist agency in set up and validation of merchant account integration. 

• Work with the Agency to determine which services to expose to the public via Accela Citizen Access. 

• Create configuration specification for Accela Citizen Access based on analysis with the Agency. 

• Configure the Online Record types defined in the System Configuration Document in Accela Citizen Access. 
 

Agency Responsibilities: 

• Obtain a merchant account, and deploy an internet-enabled payment engine. 

• Validate that the configuration specification for Accela Citizen Access meets Agency requirements based on 
details from the Configuration phase of the project. 

• Perform testing of all Online Record types for purposes of validating the configuration. 

 

Acceptance Criteria: 

• Accela Citizen Access Configuration Analysis Document provides details of all configuration elements based 
on Accela Civic Platform back office configuration. 

• The base configuration of Accela Citizen Access is configured as documented in the approved Accela Citizen 
Access Configuration Specification Document. 

• Demonstration of the operational Accela Citizen Access functionality per the specification document(s). 

 

Acceptance Review Period: 

• Three (3) business days 

 

FINANCIAL INTERFACE 

A flat comma or pipe delimited export file will be created that will capture the daily financial transactions. The Agency 
will manage the internal import of daily financial data into the Agency’s current financial system. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 14  

  
 

PAYMENT PROCESSOR 

Agency agrees to use one of the existing and tested payment processors that currently work with Accela. If a custom 
payment processor interface is required, this will result in a change order. 

 
 

REPORTS 

Reports are defined as anything that can be printed from the system, including but not limited to, reports, forms, 
documents, notices, and letters that the Agency wishes to print as identified during configuration analysis. The Accela 
platform comes with dozens of reports that work out of the box. Agency agrees to utilize these reports for its reporting 
needs. It is expected that, after the appropriate training on the database and the selected report writing tool is 

completed, Agency personnel will be able to handle additional and future report requirements. If necessary, up to 8 
hours will be dedicated to minor modifications to out of the box reports by RedMark. If additional reports are required 
from RedMark by the Agency, a Change Order will be required. 

 
 

ACCELA GIS CONFIGURATION (IF NECESSARY) 

RedMark will install and configure Accela GIS to link and leverage existing Agency GIS information, including 
assistance with establishing the map service to be used in conjunction with Accela GIS. The following are the main 

objectives being pursued through the implementation of the Accela GIS: 

• Look up permit information and parcel information from the Permitting system. 

• View selection, location, and associated GIS information. 

• Select one or more parcels and add new applications to the permit system. 

• Auto-populate spatial attributes for a property in forms (including ACA). 
 

During GIS installation, RedMark’s technical staff will work with Agency IT staff to ensure that the components for 
hardware, software, database, network, and Internet are in place for the Accela GIS test and production environments. 
RedMark technical staff will validate the proper installation and configuration of the Accela GIS environment. 

 

In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 
 

➢ Accela GIS installed on Agency server(s) 

➢ Accela GIS Admin Training 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Install Accela software and perform quality assurance checks on the configuration and performance based on 
acceptance criteria mutually developed by RedMark and the Agency. 

• Demonstrate that the Accela GIS applications are operational in the Agency computing environment thus 
communicating with the Accela Civic Platform system. 

• Assist the Agency in identifying and developing Proximity Alerts and Dynamic Themes 

• Does not include external APO (XAPO). 

 
Agency Responsibilities: 

• Arrange for the availability of appropriate staff for the system installation, setup, testing, and quality 
assurance throughout the setup process. 

• Order and procure necessary hardware, non-Accela systems software, and networking infrastructure as 
specified by Accela. 

• Provide people and physical resources based on the dates outlined in the project schedule. 

• Prepare the hardware, software, and network in accordance with the specifications provided by Accela. 

• Provide RedMark with network access for remote installation and testing. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 15  

  
 

• Provide information and data in the formats specified by Accela that will be needed for the GIS 
implementation. 

 
Acceptance Criteria: 

• Demonstration of operating Accela GIS in test environment. 

 

ACCELA MOBILE CONFIGURATION (IF NECESSARY) 

RedMark will configure the Accela Mobile Office application. As part of this deliverable RedMark will perform the 
configuration tasks required to ensure Accela Mobile Office interfaces with Accela Civic Platform in both a test and 
production environment. Using Accela Mobile Office, an Agency inspector can perform activities such as: 

• Result inspections/investigations in either store/forward or wireless mode 

• Print reports in the field 

 
Analysis activities with the Agency will result in a Mobile Office Configuration Specifications Document. Subsequently, 
RedMark’s staff will extend base configuration of Accela Mobile Office per the Mobile Office Configuration 
Specifications Document. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ Accela Mobile Office Configuration Specifications Document 
➢ Demonstration of operation system per Accela Mobile Office Configuration Specifications Document 
➢ Accela Mobile Office Admin Training 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Create configuration specifications for Accela Mobile Office based on analysis with the Agency. 

• Configure Accela Mobile Office based on approved specifications document. 
 

Acceptance Criteria: 

• The base configuration of Accela Mobile Office in the Development or Test environment is configured as 
documented in the Accela Mobile Office Configuration Specifications document. 

 
Acceptance Review Period: 

• Demonstration of operating Accela Mobile in test environment. 

 

 STAGE 5 – READINESS  

DELIVERABLE 6: ADMINISTRATIVE AND TECHNICAL TRAINING 

RedMark will provide training for Agency staff that focuses on the administration, maintenance, and augmentation of 
its Accela Civic Platform configuration. Our aim at RedMark is to educate Agency resources on all aspects of Accela 
Civic Platform in an effort to ensure the Agency is self-sufficient. This allows the Agency to best react to changing 
requirements and ongoing maintenance, which can allow the Agency to be reactive and significantly reduce system 
maintenance costs over time. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ 1 Core Team Training – 1 day 

➢ 1 Administrator Training – 3 days 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 16  

  
 

➢ 1 Database Schema (Reports) Training – Half day 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Coordinate with the Agency to define training schedule and logistics. 

• Deliver training per the specific requirements listed above. 
 

Agency Responsibilities: 

• Select and prepare the power-users who will be participating in the training and subsequently training end 
users. 

• Arrange the time and qualified people for the training who are critical to the project success. 

• Provide suitable Agency facilities to accommodate various training classes. 

• Ensure that users are proficient in using PC’s in a Windows environment as a prerequisite for the course. 

• Ensure that users are familiar with use of standard Internet browsers as a prerequisite for the course. 
 

Acceptance Criteria: 

• Execution of listed training courses 

 

DELIVERABLE 7: DAILY USER TRAINING 

This Deliverable includes the delivery by RedMark to Agency of 1 instances of the Daily User Training course (2 days 
onsite or virtual). Accela best practices have proven that class sizes no larger than 14 participants are more 
successful with students who meet the pre-requisites of the course. The RedMark Trainer has the right to modify the 
class size to ensure successful instruction with Agency agreement. 

 
End User Training should be coupled with the Agency delivering supplementary user training to its staff using the core 
Use Cases documented in each System Configuration Document. RedMark recommends that Agency adopt the 
“80/20 rule” for training, focusing the majority of their training on the 80% of what the Agency normally does 

operationally. The recommended supplementary training conducted by the Agency can utilize business experts from 
each area to train on all aspects of their configuration. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

➢ 1 instances of Daily User Training 

RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Coordinate with the Agency to define training schedule and logistics. 

• Provide 1 of Daily User Training. 

 
Agency Responsibilities: 

• Select and prepare the power-users who will be participating in the training and subsequently training end 
users. 

• Arrange the time and qualified people for the training who are critical to the project success. 

• Provide suitable Agency facilities to accommodate various training classes. 

• Ensure that users are proficient in using PC’s in a Windows environment as a prerequisite for the course. 

• Ensure that users are familiar with use of standard Internet browsers as a prerequisite for the course. 
 

Acceptance Criteria: 

• Execution of 1 instances of the End User Training course to the Agency. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 17  

  
 

DELIVERABLE 8: USER ACCEPTANCE TESTING (UAT) 

This deliverable is comprised of the assistance RedMark will provide to allow the Agency to accept that the solution 
meets the requirements as documented in all the deliverables. RedMark will assist the Agency in the testing and 
validation of the solution and its readiness to be migrated to production for active use and will assist in transferring the 
solution and any required data from Support to Production. 

 
RedMark will provide of support for training, oversight, answering questions and addressing issues discovered in User 
Acceptance Testing. It should be noted that it is critical that the Agency devote ample time and resources to his effort 
to ensure that the system is operating per signed specifications and ready for the move to production. The testing 
effort will require a significant time investment by the Agency, and coordination of resources is critical. At this point in 
the implementation process, the Agency should test individual components of functionality of the solution (i.e., 

functional and/or unit testing), and also test to ensure that the interrelated parts of the Accela Civic Platform solution 
are operating properly (i.e., integration testing). 

 
RedMark will provide assistance to the Agency as needed by providing User Acceptance Testing (UAT) support and 
facilitating completion of UAT. RedMark will address and rectify issues discovered during the UAT process as Agency 
staff executes testing activities. RedMark will work with the Agency to develop a test plan and deliver sample test 
scripts, as well as an issue log to track the progress of testing. It should be noted that RedMark will plan for a total of 

2 weeks to complete this deliverable. 

 
If the Agency does not devote adequate time and staffing to UAT in order to completely test the solution, RedMark 
may opt to postpone go-live at the Agency’s expense. RedMark will work diligently with Agency to ensure this does 
not occur and provide several opportunities for the Agency to add additional staff and time to this effort before 

recommending a postponement or delay. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ Resolution of issues resulting from Agency User Acceptance Testing 
➢ Fully tested system that is ready to move to production for go-live 

 

RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Provide recommendations on testing strategy and best practices. 

• Lead the Agency in up to 2 weeks of User Acceptance testing effort and the validation of the system 
configuration and its readiness to be migrated to production for active use. 

• Resolution of issues as a result of User Acceptance Testing activities. 
 

Agency Responsibilities: 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to RedMark’s request for information. 

• Make available the appropriate Agency key users and content experts to participate in user acceptance 
testing as defined and managed by Agency. 

• Develop the User Acceptance test scripts. 

• Utilize the use cases documented in each Configuration Document Deliverable as the basis for the 
acceptance of this Deliverable. 

 

Acceptance Criteria: 

• Completion of up to 2 weeks of UAT 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 18  

  
 

 STAGE 6 – DEPLOY  

DELIVERABLE 9 PRODUCTION SUPPORT 

Production date is defined as the official date in which Accela Civic Platform moves from the test environment to 
production for daily Agency usage. This date will be agreed to by both RedMark and the Agency at project 
inception. It may be altered only by change order agreed to by both parties. In the weeks prior to moving to 

Production, RedMark will assist in final data conversions, system validation, staff preparation assistance and training, 

and coordination of deployment. 
 

In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ Deployment support prior to moving to Production 
➢ Setup of Integration points in Production 
➢ Final Conversion run during cutover 
➢ Accela Civic Platform used in Production environment for Agency daily use 

 

RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Provide on-site resources to support the move to Production effort. 

• With assistance from the Agency, lead the effort to transfer the system configuration and any required data 
from Support to Production. 

• Assist in the development of a Pre-Production checklist that details the critical tasks that must be 
accomplished prior to moving to Production. 

 

Agency Responsibilities: 

• Provide technical and functional user support for pre and post Production Planning, execution, and 
monitoring. 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to RedMark’s request for information. 

• Assist in the development of a Pre-Production checklist that details the critical tasks that must be 
accomplished prior to moving to Production. 

• Make available the appropriate Agency key users and content experts to participate in user acceptance 
testing as defined and managed by Agency. 

 
Acceptance Criteria: 

• Deployment support prior to moving to Production. 

• Production system is first used by the Agency for daily use. 

 

DELIVERABLE 10: POST DEPLOYMENT SUPPORT AND TRANSITION TO CRC 

This deliverable is comprised of the post- Production support assistance that RedMark will provide to address issues 
and provide consultative advice immediately following the move to Production for daily use. RedMark will provide 
support for 2 weeks immediately following deployment (go-live). 

 
RedMark will work with the Agency to identify and address issues identified during this period using a Post-Production 
Issues List. This list will be comprised of issues related to the defined deliverables listed in this SOW, which will be 
addressed by RedMark, as well as any other issues that the Agency wishes to track (not RedMark Responsibility). 

Examples of issues the Agency is responsible for include training issues, functional changes beyond the scope of this 
Statement of Work, cosmetic changes, and procedures related to the use of Accela Civic Platform. Specifically, 
RedMark will not be developing or creating additional reports, conversions, interfaces, record types and workflow 
processes that were not included in the scope of this project. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 19  

  
 

 

At the end of the support period, RedMark will provide a final a final copy of the issue tracker to the customer and 
disable the list. Additionally a formal meeting will be scheduled with the Agency, RedMark Services Team, and Accela 

CRC for the purpose of transitioning support of future issues and question from the Agency to Accela CRC. 

 
In terms of specific output, the following will be executed for this deliverable: 

 
➢ 2 weeks of Post Deployment Support 
➢ Finalized post-production issues list 
➢ Transition of Agency from Services team to Customer Resource Center for ongoing support 

 
RedMark Responsibilities: 

• Provide post-production support for RedMark developed configuration and components. 

• Assist with the identification of issues for the post-production Issues List. 

• Assist with issues that may arise related to the deliverables in this SOW. 

• Transfer ongoing support of the client and to the CRC to address any post-production issues that require 
remediation. 

 
Agency Responsibilities: 

• Provide technical and functional user support for post-production support and monitoring. 

• Develop and maintain a post-production Issues List. 

• Provide timely and appropriate responses to RedMark’s request for information. 

• Make available the appropriate Agency key users and content experts to participate in user acceptance 
testing as defined and managed by Agency. 

 
Acceptance Criteria: 

• Execution of 2 weeks post-production support. 

• Official transfer from the RedMark Services project team to the Customer Resource Center (CRC). 

 
 

 
(Rest of page intentionally left blank) 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 20  

  
 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
RedMark and Carahsoft will perform the Services on a Not to Exceed payment basis. Carahsoft and RedMark’s total 
price to perform the Services and provide the Deliverables described in this document is estimated to be $30,000.00 
exclusive of taxes and expenses. The price is based on the information available at the time of signing and the 

assumptions, dependencies and constraints, and roles and responsibilities of the Parties, as stated in this SOW. 
RedMark shall not exceed the total estimate amount without the prior approval of Agency and shall not continue to 
provide services, after the total estimate has been reached, without the prior authorization of Agency. Invoices will be 
sent after completion and approval of each deliverable described in the deliverable schedule below. 

 
Any amounts remaining on the project when RedMark has completed the scope of this project will not be used for 
other work without a Change Order delineating the scope. 

 

Deliverable Summary Invoice Amount 

Deliverable 1: Project Initiation $ 1,875.00 

Deliverable 2: Accela Civic Platform System Setup N/A 

Deliverable 3: To-Be Analysis Sessions and Configuration $ 9,625.00 

Deliverable 4: Business Process Validation and Automation $ 2,500.00 

Deliverable 5: Accela Citizen Access Configuration $ 2,000.00 

Financial Interface N/A 

Payment Processor N/A 

Reports N/A 
Accela GIS Configuration (if necessary) N/A 

Accela Mobile Configuration (if necessary) N/A 
Deliverable 6: Administrative and Technical Training $ 3,000.00 

Deliverable 7: Daily User Training $ 3,000.00 

Deliverable 8: User Acceptance Testing (UAT) $ 2,375.00 

Deliverable 9: Production Support $ 2,500.00 

Deliverable 10: Post Deployment Support and Transition to CRC $ 3,125.00 

Professional Services $ 30,000.00 

Estimated Travel Up to 3 trips included 

TOTAL $ 30,000.00 

 

 
EXPENSES 

Actual amounts of any reasonable and customary travel expenses incurred during the performance of services under 
this SOW that are above and beyond the 3 trips included the above pricing will be billed to Agency, and will require a 

purchase order. Carasoft will bill Agency for actual expenses incurred for travel and lodging/living, as well as other 
approved out-of-pocket expenses (such as mileage, parking, tolls, and telecommunications charges, etc.).  RedMark 
will work with Agency to manage and control its expenses in accordance with agency’s travel policy guidelines and will 
not incur expenses more than the initial contracted budget below without Agency’s prior written consent. Expense 

receipts will be made available as requested by Agency. The RedMark PM and Agency PM will set mutually agreed 
upon thresholds for such line items as: nightly hotel rates, airfare rates, etc. If any project team members travel is 
required to exceed those thresholds at any time, the RedMark PM and Agency PM will mutually be required to 
approve such travel costs prior to project team members booking that travel. Total estimated expenses are based on 

past RedMark engagement experience. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 21  

  
 

CONTRACT SUM 

The total amount authorized under this Agreement for Services and Expenses is therefore $30,000.00 excluding taxes 
if applicable. 

 
 

TERMS 

The pricing and terms of this proposal are valid until May 31, 2022. If this Statement of Work is accepted after this 

date all pricing and terms may not be valid. 

 
 
 

(Rest of page intentionally left blank) 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 22  

  
 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 
• Agency and RedMark will review their responsibilities before work begins to ensure that Services can be 

satisfactorily completed. 

• Agency shall provide the necessary tools, accounts, and permissions that will enable RedMark to access the 
Agency’s internal network for the purpose of remote installation and testing. This access must be provided 
through industry standard tools such as Virtual Private Network (VPN). Failure to provide this access in a 
timely fashion will result in a project delay. Such a delay will result in a Change Order. 

• Agency agrees during the Initiation Phase of the project to assign a single designated approver for each 

major project deliverable. The designated approver will be responsible for overseeing and/or directly 
participating in the design and development, as well as the approval, of the deliverable. Agency may make 
changes to designated approvers with written notification to RedMark a minimum of one month before a 
deliverable is due. 

• During onsite visits, Agency will provide workspace for RedMark Services for work completed on Agency 
premises. 

• RedMark will implement the most current version of Accela Civic Platform at the time of the contract signing.  
In the case of self-hosted customers, if Agency chooses to upgrade the system at any time after initial system 
installation has been completed, additional costs will be incurred and managed via a Change Order. 

• Agency will maintain primary responsibility for the scheduling of Agency employees and facilities in support of 
project activities. 

• If applicable, Agency will ensure that RedMark resources have access to a Development or Test version of 
the 3rd party system for interface development. All interfaces will be developed against 1 (one), agreed upon 
version of the 3rd party system. 

• Agency will provide/purchase/acquire the appropriate hardware, software, and infrastructure assets to 
support all required Accela software products in both support/testing and production environments as defined 
in the project schedule. 

• For use with Accela Citizen Access, Agency will provide/purchase/acquire an online merchant account and 
all related hardware required by the merchant account provider for the handling of credit cards and/or checks. 

• Agency is responsible for proper site preparation, hardware, software, and network configuration in 
accordance with Accela specifications. 

• RedMark will be responsible for implementing a functioning version of the application software at the Agency 
(assuming the Agency has installed the proper hardware, software, and networking devices). 

• RedMark will provide the Agency with a Bi-Weekly Status Report that outlines the tasks completed during the 

prior week, the upcoming tasks that need to be completed during the following week, the resources needed 
to complete the tasks, a current version of the project plan, and a listing of any issues that may be placing the 
project at risk (e.g., issues that may delay the project or jeopardize one or more of the production dates). 

• If applicable, Agency will provide RedMark with access to test and development environments for each 
Agency system that requires integration with Accela Civic Platform. 

• RedMark personnel will attend Agency executive steering committee meetings as needed. 

• Agency has committed to the involvement of key resources and subject matter experts for ongoing 
participation in all project activities as defined in the project plan associated with this SOW. 

• The project schedule is managed using Microsoft Project. Should any tasks slip behind schedule ten (10) 
business days, RedMark and Agency will escalate accordingly. 

 
PROJECT RESOURCES AND LOCATION OF WORK 

WORK LOCATION 

Services contracted under this SOW may be performed remotely and/or at the Agency’s on-site facilities as deemed 
appropriate and reasonable for the successful completion of the Services detailed herein. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 23  

  
 

AGENCY RESOURCES 

Agency must fill the appropriate roles with the appropriate personnel to work together with the RedMark Engagement 
Team for these Services and that Agency will make available additional resources as needed for the Services to be 
successful. Agency roles can be filled by the same person. In addition, Agency will provide all necessary technical 
resources to make appropriate modifications within any Agency systems wishing to integrate with any Accela systems. 

These resources must be proficient in Agency coding/development environment and tools, to make the required 
changes to their software to enable integration and must be available during the timeframe of these 
Services. Agency roles include Sponsor, Project Manager, Technology Manager, and Business Lead(s) for each 
Division/department being implemented, Super User trainers, and others as appropriate. 

 
Agency Resources Description 

 
 
 
 
Project Sponsor 

Responsibilities include: 

 

• Ultimate responsibility for the success of the project, 

• Creating an environment that promotes project buy-in, 

• Driving the project through all levels of the agency, 

• High-level oversight throughout the duration of the project, 

• Serving as the primary escalation point to address project issues in a 

timely manner. 

 
 
 
 

Project Manager 

Responsibilities include: 

 
• Overall administration, coordination, communication, and decision- 

making associated with the implementation; 

• Planning, scheduling, coordinating and tracking the implementation with 
Accela and across departments within the agency; 

• Ensuring that the project team stays focused, tasks are completed on 

schedule, and that the project stays on track. 

 
 
 
 

 
Division/Departmental 
Business Leads 

A user representative for each affected department must be appointed to facilitate 

analysis and configuration and serve as a decision-making entity for that 

group. These critical appointments may well determine the success of the 

implementation for their respective areas. Responsibilities include: 
 

• Attending requirements workshop sessions; 

• Willing and able to gather data and make decisions about business 
processes; 

• Assist in the creation of specifications for reports, interfaces & 
conversions 

• Review and test the system configuration; 

• Participating in the implementation of the Accela Civic Platform solution. 

 
Division/Departmental Subject 
Matter Expert (SME) 

Responsibilities include: 

 
• Being trained on the Accela Civic Platform system at a System 

Administration level; 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 24  

  
 

 • Being fully engaged in the Business Analysis and system configuration 
activities; 

• Assist internal efforts towards the creation of reports, interfaces & 
conversions; 

• Assist in the review and testing of the system configuration; 

• Actively participate in the full implementation of the Accela Civic Platform 

solution. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Technical Lead 

Responsibilities include: 

 
• Primary responsibility for the technical environment during the software 

implementation; 

• Ensure that servers, databases, network, desktops, printers, are available 
for system implementation and meet minimum standards; 

• Work with RedMark technical personnel during implementation; 

• Maintain test and production databases; 

• Perform day-to-day maintenance of the system and install maintenance 
releases; 

• Act as the primary technical resource for troubleshooting problems; 

• ·Establish and maintain backup, archival, and other customary 
maintenance and housekeeping activities. 

 

REDMARK RESOURCES 

RedMark will assign key Professional Services resources for this engagement with Agency. These individuals are well 
versed in the Accela Civic Platform application and are well qualified to lead this effort. RedMark’s Project Manager 
shall assume full responsibility for the coordination of this team and its interaction with key Agency resources assigned 
to the effort. The main roles are as follows: 

 
RedMark Resources Description 

 
 

Project Executive 

The Project Executive oversees the project’s progress/direction and works with the 
Project Manager to ensure efficiency, consistency and quality in delivery of Accela 
implementations. The Project Executive actively participates in a project 

director/executive role. The Project Executive will meet with Agency Executives 
monthly or upon request throughout the duration of the project. 

 
 
 
 
 

Project Manager 

The RedMark Project Manager is responsible for the overall project management and 
works directly with the client throughout all aspects of Accela implementations: from 
the initial scoping, planning, staffing to delivery. The Project Manager undertakes the 

project administration tasks including: 
 

• Project plan management, 

• Change order management, 

• Issue log management and escalation, 

• Status reporting, 

• Project workspace management, 

• Resources management, 

• Work plan management, 
• Meetings management, 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 25  

  
 

 • Project review with Project Executive. 

 
In addition, the Project Manager will actively participate in leading the System 
Configuration Analysis sessions and will be responsible for the creation of the System 
Configuration Document. 

 
 
 
 

 
Senior Implementation 
Consultant 

The Senior Implementation Consultant assigned to the project will have major 
experience in the business process as well as the product functionality and is 

responsible for: 
 

• Business analysis activities: Mapping the client’s business processes and 
requirements to the functionality of Accela’s products and the creation of 
solution design, 

• Leading system configuration activities, 

• Providing training/mentoring to agency staff, 

• Recommend industry best practices to agency to enhance business 
processes, 

• Guide agency on how best to configure the system based on past 
experiences and software expertise. 

 
 
 
Implementation Consultant 

Implementation Consultant resources support the project and typically focus on the 

flowing tasks. 

 

• The configuration of the system to match the System Configuration 
document. 

• Build activities within the project, such as conversion data mapping, creation 
of reports and interface specification. 

 
 
 

Technical Consultant 

RedMark Technical Consultants are involved in all areas that require knowledge o 
server-side considerations and Accela add-on products such as: 

 

• Application installation and setup (Accela Civic Platform, Accela GIS, Accela 
Mobile Office, and Accela Citizen Access), 

• Report definition and creation, 

• Event Manager Script definition and programming, 

• Database Conversions and data mapping assistance, 
• Interface specifications and development. 

Training Consultant 
Training Consultants are responsible for Accela Training classes with assistance 
from Implementation consultants, depending on the nature of the specific project. 

 
 
 

(Rest of page intentionally left blank) 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 26  

  
 

ACCEPTANCE 

The Services contracted for in this Statement of Work will be considered Accepted when all Deliverables defined in the 
Work Description Section have been accepted by Agency as defined for each Deliverable. Additionally, transition to 
Accela’s Customer Service Center, CRC has been completed. The live system has been handed over to the CRC 
and the transfer of knowledge from the Project Team to the CRC has also been completed. All training has 

concluded, and project documentation has been handed over to the CRC. 

 
Accepted By: Town of Kenneth City, FL Accepted By: Carahsoft 

By: By: 

Print Name: Print Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

 
 
 
 

(Rest of page intentionally left blank) 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 27  

  
 

APPENDIX A - ACCELA IMPLEMENTATION METHODOLOGY 

RedMark will deliver its Services to the Agency by employing the methodology detailed in this section. This is a 
proven methodology that guides the project from inception to deployment, thereby increasing the chances of 
successfully implementing Accela software products. Project delivery through execution of this Implementation Life 
Cycle is described below. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION LIFE CYCLE 

Thorough execution of these six stages ensures that Accela customers receive high-quality services throughout the 

project engagement. 

 
Figure 1 - Accela Methodology 

 

 
 

As illustrated in the figure above, the stages of project delivery flow in linear direction, although many tasks run in 
parallel as appropriate to avoid unnecessary project delays. Each stage has pre-defined objectives, tasks and 
associated deliverables. Depending on the exact scope of the project, a full complement or subset of all available 

deliverables will be delivered through the services defined for the project. Employing this deliverables-based 
approach ensures that RedMark and the Agency understand the composition and ‘downstream’ impact of each project 
deliverable to ensure the project is delivered with quality and in a timely manner. 

 

INITIATION 

Initiation represents the first stage in the lifecycle. During the Initiation stage, project contracts and the SOW 

are finalized, project scope and objectives are reviewed, and project planning activities and deliverables are 
completed. In terms of specific deliverables, common output from the Initiation Phase is as follows: 

▪ Project Charter, 

▪ Baseline Project Plan, 

▪ Project Status Report Template, 

▪ Project SharePoint Site pre-loaded with baseline documentation, 

▪ Project Initiation Meeting. 

 
TO-BE ANALYSIS 

To-Be Analysis is the second stage in the lifecycle. During the Analysis stage, RedMark reviews existing 
agency documentation, interviews agency staff, and conducts workshops to understand the “To-Be” vision of 

the Agency that can be executed with the aid of Accela Civic Platform. It is during this Phase that RedMark 
gains a deeper understanding of Agency processes and business rules; simultaneously, the Agency begins 
to gain a deeper understanding of the methodology and Accela Civic Platform capabilities. A key output of 
this Phase is the To-Be Analysis Document(s) which serve as the ‘foundation’ for configuration of Accela 

Civic Platform to support germane elements of the Agency “To-Be” vision. Supplementing the To-Be 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 28  

  
 

Analysis Document(s) are all other configuration specifications documents related to data conversion, 
interfaces, reports, and event scripts. 

 

SOLUTION FOUNDATION 

Solution Foundation is the third stage in the lifecycle. It begins upon completion of Stage 2 and should be 
completed prior to the next stage, Build. During the Solution Foundation stage, Accela Civic Platform will be 
built to match the to-be processes agreed to in the Analysis stage. Essential to this effort is the configuration 
of the Record (Case, Application, Permit, Work Order, etc.) types that were agreed to during the Analysis 

phase. Configuration of in-scope record types is comprised of, but not limited to: 

▪ User-defined fields (Application-Specific Information and Task-Specific Information), 

▪ Workflows and statuses, 

▪ Fee structures and rules, 

▪ Inspection data. 
 

BUILD 

Build serves as the fourth stage in the lifecycle, and execution of this stage overlaps Configuration, but ends 
after Configuration is complete. During the Build stage, all defined elements during the Analysis stage 
beyond the Solution Foundation will be implemented. This includes conversions, event scripts, interfaces 

and reports. In terms of specific deliverables, common output from the Build Phase is as follows: 

▪ Event Script Development, 

▪ Report Specifications and Development, 

▪ Data Conversion Specifications and Development, 

▪ Interface Specifications and Development. 

 

READINESS 

Readiness is the fifth stage in the lifecycle. During the Readiness stage Accela Civic Platform is fully tested, 
errors are identified, documented and corrected. Additionally, the solution is prepared for deployment. In 
addition, system administrators and end users are trained so that all appropriate agency staff members are 

prepared to use and maintain the software once the move to production occurs. In terms of specific 
deliverables, common output from the Readiness Phase is as follows: 

▪ User Acceptance Testing, 

▪ End-User Training. 

 
DEPLOY 

Deploy is the sixth and final stage in the lifecycle. During the Deploy stage the applications are moved to 
production; all requisite pre-production activities are identified, tracked and completed, and post-production 

analysis and review is completed. Upon moving to production, the Accela Civic Platform applications are 
transitioned to the Accela Customer Resource Center (‘CRC”) for ongoing support. A formal transition will 
occur between the Services team and the CRC that instructs the agency on available communication 
channels (telephone, email, online tracking system) and use of the Accela knowledge base. Lastly, all 
documented issues or enhancement requests will be transitioned from the Services team to the Customer 

Resource Center. In terms of specific deliverables, common output from the Deploy Phase is as follows: 

▪ Pre-Production Checklist Development, Tracking and Execution, 

▪ Move to Production, 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 29  

  
 

▪ Post-Production Analysis, 

▪ Formal Transition to the CRC for Ongoing Support 

 
 
 

(Rest of page intentionally left blank) 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 30  

  
 

APPENDIX B – DATA CONVERSION ASSUMPTIONS (IF APPLICABLE) 
The following information provides detail related to the scope of Accela’s data conversion offerings. Due to the 
inherent complexity of conversion activities, it is critical to address and understand common questions and 
misconceptions. Any conversion activity or requirement not included in this section is considered out of scope, and 
may be addressed through a change order for RedMark services. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS FOR HISTORICAL CONVERSIONS 

• The standard data conversion includes the conversion of transactional data to the Accela Civic Platform 
database when a configured destination exists. In the event there is no destination for legacy transactional 
data then it will be required to be converted as best fits into another area of the configuration or excluded 
from the conversion effort. 

• RedMark will perform unit testing of the conversion program including spot checks of the data within Accela 

Civic Platform in order to identify if data corruption issues exist. Extensive quality assurance of 
legacy/historical data by the agency is required in order to ensure accurate transfer of data. 

• A completed, signed off, Solution Foundation must be available before RedMark will begin the data 
conversion mapping effort. 

 

DATA CONVERSION ASSUMPTIONS 

• “As-Is” Approach: Conversion of transactional tables, Address/Parcel/Owner (APO) data, Professional 
License data is executed “As-is” into Accela Civic Platform. “As-is” means that the data will be transformed 
as mapped to existing configuration elements in Accela Civic Platform. The conversion process will not 
create configuration data or alter the mapped data when processed into Accela Civic Platform. Additionally 

this means if invalid, inaccurate, or incomplete data is provided, it will be loaded into Accela Civic Platform 

“As-Is”. Invalid data may be rejected by the loading process and tools, in which case said data would not be 

loaded into or available to view on Accela Civic Platform. All data cleanup must occur prior to execution into 

Accela Civic Platform. 

• Accela Data Conversion Tools: Data will be mapped and converted utilizing Accela’s Extract, Translate 
and Load (“ETL”) toolset. This will assist to ensure the accuracy of the mapping. The data mapping tool 
ensures that the legacy source to Accela Civic Platform solution is accurate and prevents data from failing to 
convert, while the execution tool can be used to consistently run conversion process and track statistics. 

• Acceptable Data Formats For Historical Conversion: It is expected that the Conversion Source Data be 
provided in an Oracle 10g/11g or Microsoft SQL Server 2000/2005/2008 database format. In the event that 
the source is not in an acceptable format, RedMark will provide recommendations for transposing the data in 

the proper format. 

• Acceptable Data Formats For Reference Conversion: It is expected that the Conversion Source Data be 
provided in Oracle 10g/11g, Microsoft SQL Server 2000/2005/2008, or pipe delimited flat file format. In the 

event that the source is not in an acceptable format, RedMark will provide recommendations for transposing 
the data in the proper format. 

• Documents: Historical/Legacy data conversion does not include the conversion of attached documents. If  
conversion of documents is required, this will be priced as a separate effort. If requested, the documents will 
be converted to the configured primary electronic document management system (EDMS). See Standard 

Document Migration for additional details. Documents Data Conversions are considered separate and 
standalone conversion efforts for each source of documents, and are therefore counted individually, even if 
the documents are part of a system that is already accounted for as being converted into Accela Civic 
Platform. 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 31  

  
 

STANDARD DOCUMENT MIGRATION 

The standard document conversion may be utilized to convert record/permit level attached electronic documents into 
the configured Accela Civic Platform EDMS systems. In the event a 3rd party EDMS is used by Accela Civic Platform, 
it is still possible to convert documents if the 3rd party interface supports the create method. 

 
At a minimum the electronic document(s) to be converted must exist in a Microsoft Windows accessible file system 
(ex. NTFS, FAT32) and have the ability to identify the associated Record ID in order to be converted. In the event that 
the files exist in a database they must be extracted into a windows file system prior to be evaluated for conversion. 

 
 
 

(Rest of page intentionally left blank) 



© 2022 RedMark Technologies, LLC. Statement of Work – Town of Kenneth City, FL Page 32  

Please acknowledge acceptance by: 

A 

Sign and fax this document to: 

B 

Email this document as an 
attachment to: 

RedMark Technologies, LLC. 
YOUR NAME 
YOUR TITLE 
Tel: 
Fax: 

OR YOUR EMAIL 

  
 

APPENDIX C – DELIVERABLES ACCEPTANCE FORM (SAMPLE) 
 

 
 

Date: 
  

Agency Name: 
 

Approving Agency Manager: 
 

RedMark Manager: 
 

Project Name / Code: 
 

 
Contract / Agreement #: 

 

 

Agency agrees that RedMark has successfully completed the following Deliverables: 
 

 
Deliverable # 

Source / 
Reference 
Details 

 

 Service 
Agreement 

 

 

Agency agrees that RedMark has successfully completed the Deliverables described above in accordance with 
the terms of the related Contract/Agreement. 

 
 

APPROVALS: 
 

 

Agency Name 

 

 

Signature 

 

 

Title 

 
 

Date 







TO: Mayor and Council 
FROM: Pete Cavalli, Town Manager 
DATE: April 13, 2022 
RE: Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services (RFP # 2022 - 001) 

Summary 

The Town's Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services Contract with Waste Connection 
expires on May 1, 2022.  Therefore, the Town initiated Request for Proposal, RFP # 2022 - 001 
to select the Town's Contractor for the period of Five (5) years, with extension options.   

At this point, all submittals have been received, reviewed by a committee of four, and a 
recommended ranking provided to Town Council herein for a final selection to be made as 
described in the RFP's Instruction to Bidders.   

Following the selection of the Contractor, the Town Manager also requests Town Council 
approval to negotiate the required agreement with the Town Council-selected contractor. 

The committee’s recommended rankings are listed in order: 1) Waste Pro, 2) Waste 
Connections, and 3) Waste Management.  

Discussion 

The Town’s current contract, and related extensions, for Solid Waste and Recycling Collection 
Services end on May 1, 2022.   

Town Staff went through an RFP process to select a contractor to provide Solid Waste and 
Recycling Collection Services for the following five years (with extension options).   

The process led to three contractors submitting a proposal packet.  These were (in alphabetical 
order) Waste Connections (Our Current Contractor), Waste Management and Waste Pro. 

The RFP Instruction to Bidders state that “The committee will recommend a ranking to the 
Town Council, which will make all final ranking and selection decisions” 

The committee of four Town Staff reviewed the proposals independently, scored the submittals 
as stated in the RFP Instructions to Bidders, and these scores were tabulated and ranked.  The 
committee ranks Waste Pro as its first selection; Waste Connection second; and Waste 
Management as its third. 



Cumulative Score Average 

Waste Pro  394 98.5 
Waste Management 340 85.0 
Waste Connection  328 82.0 

The committee’s recommended ranking does come with a few notes.  Waste Pro submitted a 
monthly Residential Rate that was $.61 more a month.  The submitted amounts are listed 
below. 

Residential Services came in at the following rates on a monthly basis 

Waste Pro $21.86 2nd  -  $.61 more than WC 
Waste Management $31.27 3rd  - $10.02 more than WC 
Waste Connections  $21.25 1st  - N/A 

Extended Monthly Costs (1083 residential accounts) 

Waste Pro $21.86 2nd  -  $23,674.38 $660.63 more than WC 
Waste Management $31.27 3rd  - $33,865.41 $10,851.66 more than WC 
Waste Connections  $21.25 1st  - $23,013.75 N/A 

Other Factors of Note 

 Recommendations and discussion with references were outstanding from Waste Pro's
municipal clients.

 Commercial Bulk Pickup costs:
o Waste Pro is $25.00/cubic yard;
o Waste Management submitted $100/occurrence; and
o Waste Connections submitted $30.00/item.

The committee felt that the $25.00/cubic yard provided by Waste Pro was the
fairest.

 Waste Pro’s special events and community involvement-focus was highlighted in both
their submission and the recommendations from local municipalities.

 Both Waste Management and Waste Pro had technology that simplified the transition,
operations, customer service, and billing.

While the above highlight a few items of note, the Town Council was provided access to the 
complete submittals of the three submissions and provided to the Councilmember based on 
their preference (email, come to Town Hall to review, obtain a physical copy, etc.   

These submittals are provided in their entirety to assist in the Town Council in their final 
selection of the Contractor.  For reference, Tab 7 is where the costs are provided by the 
contractors.   



Financial Impact 

This Agreement for Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services does not have a financial 
impact to the Town based on 1) there is no franchise fee received by the Town 2) the services 
to Town facilities and events are included into the overall cost of services paid by the 
businesses and residents of the Town of Kenneth City and 3) billing is collected by the 
Contractor directly by the resident/business. 

Conclusion 

The Town Manager respectfully requests Town Council for its final selection of the Solid 
Waste and Recycling Collection Services contractor and approval for the Town Manager to 
enter into negotiations with the selected contractor resulting in the Final Contract for Solid 
Waste and Recycling Collection Services. 



                      
 
TO:  Mayor and Council 
FROM: Pete Cavalli, Town Manager 
DATE:  April 13, 2022 
RE:  Finance and Accounting Service Contract – Andy Tess, CPA 
 
 
 
Summary 
 
Town Management has re-worked an Agreement with Andrew Tess, CPA to provide Finance 
and Accounting Services for the Town at a cost of $53,560 annually, with a 3% escalation clause 
and a termination clause consisting of a 60-day notice by either party. 
 
 
Discussion 
 
Town Management has worked with Andy Tess to determine the needs of the Town and have 
mutually agreed to the following scope of services to be presented to Town Council.  This work 
is to be performed for a compensation of $53,560 annually. 
 
This re-working of our Agreement amounts to a reduction of 20.3% effective immediately 
following Town Council approval. 
 
Town Management feels this provides the Town with the greatest flexibility, impact and cost-
effectiveness to fill the demand of the Town as it relates to Finance and Accounting Services.  
Furthermore, the current needs of the Town include working within highly specialized areas such 
as American Rescue Plan Act Reporting, Grant Management, and Integration with new IT 
systems.  Staff feels that this agreement provides for and satisfies the Town’s needs. 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. Consultants will post all income and expense transactions into the accounting software.   
1. Town staff will be responsible for all invoices being approved and coded to expense accounts 

prior to processing.  Town staff will be responsible for finalizing checks (i.e. signing and mailing) 
after processing. 

2. Town staff will be responsible for preparing the bank deposits and summarizing the cash receipt 
information to enable Consultants to post into the accounting records. 

B. Consultants will reconcile all bank and investment accounts each month. Monthly financial statements will 
be provided to management. 

C. Town staff will process all bi-weekly payrolls via operative third party platform (presently CentrallyHR).   
1. Consultants will post payroll and pension transactions into the accounting software but will not 

audit the accuracy of the payroll records.   
2. Each department will be responsible for proper oversight and accuracy of that departments’ time 

records. 
D. Consultants will assist Town staff with the preparation and filing of requisite compliance and regulatory 



reports, to include American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) and any state or federal grant submissions. 
E. Consultants will maintain audit files and assist with annual audit examination, to include corresponding

with the auditor as directed by the Town Manager or his/her designee.

Consultants will not be required to attend workshops or Council meetings.  An additional fee would be charged 
for any other services beyond the scope of agreed upon services.  This additional fee will be charged at a rate of 
$100.00 per hour. 

The Town Manager performed a regional survey to see what the current pay is for municipal 
government employment (similar job descriptions and high level of responsibility), as well 
as what is currently being advertised in recruitment efforts:   

AND 

• The salary range for the City of Seminole’s Senior Accountant is $57, 936.52 to $86,904.79.

• City of Gulfport reported the following: Finance Director, CPA, $109,842.72; Accounting 
Manager, $65,145.60; Sr. Accountant, $53,836.64.

• City of Belleair Beach reported that their CPA is paid $58,350.

• The City of Treasure Island’s Finance Director (CPA) $94,328; Assistant Finance Director,
$77,667; Fiscal Analyst, $55,995; Account Specialist, $42,328.

• Town of Largo is looking for an Assistant Finance Director, advertised at a pay range of
$74,318.40 to 85,466.16 (hiring range) $74,318 to 118,893 (Salary Range).  Minimum 
Requirements of Education – Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting and 5 years progressively 
responsible accounting experience.

• Pasco Sheriff’s Office is looking for an Assistant Finance Manager at a cost of $55,117.40 
to$63,385.01 annually.

Another reason the Town Manager recommends we continue our relationship with Andy Tess, 
CPA is that he brings a vast amount of municipal government experience, he carries with him 
institutional knowledge specific to Kenneth City and there has been notable continuous 
improvement in the areas of finance since he has come to work for the Town.    

Furthermore, he will be working with us as we integrate our current systems with the Accela IT 
System, begin to accept credit card payments, and improve our reporting to Council.   

Financial Impact 

The Agreement’s calls for a weekly amount of $1030 for an annual contract amount of $53,560 
with an annual increase of 3%.  The agreement has a termination clause provided there is a 60-
day notice provided. 

Conclusion 

The Town Manager respectfully requests authorization of Town Council to enter into 
negotiations with Andrew Tess, CPA to continue to provide Accounting and Finance Services. 

*These figures do not include the actual financial impact, close to an additional 30%.



       
       Andrew Tess, CPA        Heather Guadagnoli, CPA 
             Address: P.O. Box 7488   Clearwater, FL 33758              Address: P.O. Box 7488   Clearwater, FL 33758   
             Phone: (727) 560-5663   E-Mail: 1040.tess@gmail.com            Phone: (727) 686-2568   E-Mail: heatherbell.cpa@gmail.com 
 

Date: 4/01/2022 
 

Town Council 
Town of Kenneth City 
6000 54th Avenue North 
Kenneth City, FL 33709 

Dear Town of Kenneth City: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to assist the Town of Kenneth City (the Town).  Below I have summarized the services 
to be provided to the Town by our firm (the Consultants). 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. Consultants will post all income and expense transactions into the accounting software.   
1. Town staff will be responsible for all invoices being approved and coded to expense accounts 

prior to processing.  Town staff will be responsible for finalizing checks (i.e. signing and mailing) 
after processing. 

2. Town staff will be responsible for preparing the bank deposits and summarizing the cash receipt 
information to enable Consultants to post into the accounting records. 

B. Consultants will reconcile all bank and investment accounts each month. Monthly financial statements will 
be provided to management. 

C. Town staff will process all bi-weekly payrolls via operative third party platform (presently CentrallyHR).   
1. Consultants will post payroll and pension transactions into the accounting software but will not 

audit the accuracy of the payroll records.   
2. Each department will be responsible for proper oversight and accuracy of that departments’ time 

records. 
D. Consultants will assist Town staff with the preparation and filing of requisite compliance and regulatory 

reports, to include American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) and any state or federal grant submissions. 
E. Consultants will maintain audit files and assist with annual audit examination, to include corresponding 

with the auditor as directed by the Town Manager or his/her designee. 
 
Consultants will not be required to attend workshops or Council meetings.  An additional fee would be charged for 
any other services beyond the scope of agreed upon services.  This additional fee will be charged at a rate of $100.00 
per hour. 
 
II. MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES 

Town management has the following responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking of this engagement: 

A. The selection of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as the financial 
reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial statements. 

B. The design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial 
statements that is free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. 

C. The prevention and detection of fraud.  Consultants will inform Town of any material errors, fraud, or other 
illegal acts Consultants discover. 

D. To ensure that the Town complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities. 
E. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information, including 

significant judgments, Town provides for this engagement. 
F. To provide Consultants with: 

1. Access to all information of which Consultants are aware is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters. 

2. Additional information that Consultants may request from  Town for the purpose of this 
engagement. 

 



Page 2 

3. Unrestricted access to persons within the Town of whom Consultants determine  to be necessary 
to make or resolve inquires. 
 

 
G. Town is responsible for all management decisions and responsibilities and for designating an individual 

with the suitable skills, knowledge, and experience to oversee our services.  Town is responsible for 
evaluating the adequacy and results of the services performed and accepting responsibility for such 
services. 

 
III. OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION 

Services will begin as of April 1, 2022, and automatically renew annually with a starting weekly contract amount of 
$1,030 for an annual contract amount of $53,560 with an annual increase allotment of 3%.  The fee is based upon 
anticipated cooperation with Town personnel.  If significant additional time is necessary, Consultant will discuss it 
with Town Management and arrive at a new fee estimate.  If additional services are required beyond those described 
herein, a standard hourly fee of $100 will be charged.  The Consultants may take up to 3 weeks leave during the annual 
contract term.  If on leave, the Consultants agree to coordinate with the Town and any third party, as necessary, to 
ensure there is no interruption to the services contemplated herein.  Consultants’ leave shall not reduce or release the 
Town from remitting the agreed-upon compensation in this agreement.  Management will be made aware of any time 
consultants will not be available.  This agreement can be terminated with 60 days written notice by either party. 
 

IV. PUBLIC RECORDS 

A. IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN 
OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 727-498-8948, cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org, 
or 6000 54th Ave. N, Kenneth City, FL 33709.  
 

B. Owing to this Agreement with a public entity, Consultant agrees to: 
1. Keep and maintain public records required by the Town to perform the service. 
2. Upon request from the Town’s custodian of public records, provide the Town with a copy of the 

requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise provided by law. 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and 
following completion of the contract if the contractor does not transfer the records to the Town. 

4. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the Town all public records in possession 
of the contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the Town to perform the service. 
If the contractor transfers all public records to the Town upon completion of the contract, the 
contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements. If the contractor keeps and maintains public records 
upon completion of the contract, the contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining 
public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Town, upon request from 
the Town’s custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information 
technology systems of the Town. 

 

 

mailto:cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org


Page 3 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Town of Kenneth City and believe this letter adequately 
summarizes the significant terms of services to be provided.  If Town acknowledges and agrees with the terms of 
services to be provided, please sign in space indicated below and return a copy to me.    

 
Sincerely, 

 

Andrew Tess, CPA 

 
        Name                                            Title                                            Date 



 
TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 

FAQS RE: PARKING AND VEHICLE REGULATIONS 
 
In July 2020, the Town Council of the Town of Kenneth City adopted Ordinance 2020-654, amending 
Chapter 54 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances regulating vehicles and parking. Below is a summary of 
some of the notable provisions within Chapter 54. This document is offered as a reference point and 
does not supplant or override the plain text of the Town’s ordinances. 
 
• Can I park on the grass of a residential property in Kenneth City? 
 
No. Chapter 54 prohibits any vehicle from being parked on the grass or soil in the front or side yard of 
a residential property. Chapter 54 prohibits recreations vehicles from being parked on any grass surface 
or other unpaved area zoned for any use. See: §§ 54-111(1)(j), 54-172, & 54-173. 
 
• Can I park on the street in front of a residential property in Kenneth City? 
 
Yes. Vehicles are generally permitted to park in the roadways in the Town’s residential districts, subject 
to a series of other restrictions. § 54-111(3). 
 
A vehicle cannot be parked on a roadway in front of a residential property if: 

o there is posted signage authorized by the Town Manager, or his/her designee, establishes 
otherwise. § 54-111(3) 

o the vehicle is parked on a two-way roadway but the passenger-side wheels are not parallel 
to and within twelve-inches of the right-hand curb or edge of the roadway. § 54-111(3) 

o it is alongside or opposite any street excavation or construction when stopping, standing or 
parking would obstruct traffic. § 54-111(1)(e). 

o it is displaced from the driveway to the roadway by a recreational vehicle. § 54-111(1)(k). 
o it is in a roadway for the principal purpose of displaying the vehicle for sale. § 54-111(4). 

 
• What is considered a permissible driveway for a residential property in the Town? 
 
A driveway must be constructed of concrete, asphalt, rock pavers, or materials such as stone, rock, 
shale, gravel, shell, or similar material which permeates water into the underlying natural surface and 
which is properly contained to prevent the composition materials from being washed away. § 54-110.  
 
The Town is working to bring its Land Development Code (the “LDC”) into alignment with the more 
recent amendments to Chapter 54. According to the LDC a residential property is required to provide a 
minimum of two spaces for each dwelling unit. § 66-39(1)(a). The LDC requires that a residential 
driveway be paved with either asphalt or concrete. § 66-39(1)(a). 
 
The permissible dimensions for a residential driveway are set forth in detail in Section 66-111 through 
66-120 of the LDC. 
 
• How does the Town of Kenneth City’s Code of Ordinances define a recreational vehicle? 
 
The definition of a recreational vehicle is broad and extends to various classes of recreational crafts and 
vehicles. § 54-171. 
 
The term “recreational vehicle” includes: RVs/Campers, boats, trailers, mini-motor homes, chassis, and 
unmounted aquatic vehicles. § 54-171. 
 
  



• Where can I park a recreational vehicle on my residential property? 
 
Regardless of the location, all recreational vehicles must be parked in a driveway. § 54-172. For 
purposes of this provision, a driveway is defined as “a pathway on residential or commercial property 
which is designed and intended to be used to park motor vehicles or other vehicles generally used to 
travel on public roads or streets.” § 54-110. Recreational vehicles cannot be parked on a grass surface, 
other unpaved area, or in the right-of-way adjacent to any home. § 54-172 (a). 
 
Those attempting to park a recreational vehicle on a residential property have a few options. First, a 
recreational vehicle can be parked within any enclosed building or structure. § 54-173(1). Second, a 
recreational vehicle can be parked in the rear of any residential structure. § 54-173(2). Third, a 
recreational vehicle can be parked on a driveway in the front of a residential structure. § 54-173 (3). 
Recreational vehicles parked in front of a home must be parked perpendicular to the frontage of the 
residence or building, and on a properly permitted driveway. § 54-172 (c). A recreational vehicle parked 
in front of a residence cannot block any portion of a sidewalk or extend into a roadway. § 54-173(3).  
 
• Am I permitted to live in a recreational vehicle parked on my property?  
 
Any stored or parked recreational vehicle cannot be occupied as living quarters or used for the purposes 
of activities normally conducted in a residence. § 54-174(a) . 
 
• How long can I park an RV on a residential property for the purposes of loading and 

unloading?  
 
A recreational vehicle can be stored or parked on a lot for the sole purpose of loading or unloading, for 
a period not to exceed 24 hours. § 54-173(5). 
 
• How long can I park an RV on a residential property for the purpose of conducting repairs? 
 
If stored in the rear of a residential lot for up to sixty (6)) days, for the purpose of repair or other work 
upon the vehicle. § 54-174(b) 
 
• What is the maximum number of permissible recreational vehicles on a residential property? 
 
One recreational vehicle is permitted within any driveway.  § 54-172(d). The means by which the 
Town’s Code is enforced relative to the permissible number of recreational vehicles is set forth in 
internal administrative guidance. See Appendix A.  
 
• What is the maximum permissible size for a vehicle or recreational vehicle? 
 
No vehicle parked on a residential property shall exceed 23 feet in length or 10,000 pounds. § 54-113 
(b) 
 
No recreational vehicle parked on a residential property shall exceed 30 feet in its rated or model length. 
§ 54-113(c) 
 
• How does the Town measure the size of a recreational vehicle? 
 
The precise method for measuring the size of a recreational vehicle, whether mounted or unmounted, is 
not set forth in the Town’s Code of Ordinances. The means by which the Town’s Code is enforced 
relative to measurements is set forth in internal administrative guidance. See Appendix A.  
 
  



• What is the penalty for violating the parking and vehicle restrictions set forth in Chp. 54? 
 
On July 22, 2020, the Town Council adopted Resolution 2020-05 setting forth the schedule of fines and 
fees for violating the Town’s Code of Ordinances. On Page 11 of Exhibit A to the Resolution there is a 
schedule of fines related to parking. Parking a vehicle or recreation vehicle exceeding the maximum 
size or weight dimensions is a Class III violation, subjected to a fine of $130, with variable costs 
depending on whether or not the violation is contested. Parking in violation of a disabled parking permit 
restriction is $250. All other parking and traffic violations relating to Chapter 54 are subject to a fine of 
$30.00.  
 
 
 



Recreational Vehicle 54-171(a) and 54-113(c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (a)(c) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (b) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

 



Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (a) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (b) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (a)(h) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (a)(h) and 54-113 (c ) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (h) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

 

 

 

 

 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (h) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

Considered ONE unit 

 

 

 



 

 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (h) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

Consider ONE unit 

 

 

 

Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (h) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

Considered ONE unit 

 

 



Recreational Vehicle 54-171 (h) and 54-113 (c) not to extend more than 30’ feet 

Considered ONE unit 

 

Considered ONE unit 

 



































                      
 

TO:  Mayor and Council 
FROM:  Pete Cavalli, Town Manager 
DATE:  April 13, 2022 
RE:  Administrative Policy & Procedure Manual – Policy 2022-01 
  Administrative Management During Absence of Town Manager or Police Chief 

Summary 

In accordance with Section 3.02 of the Town Charter, and in tandem with the Town’s disaster 
preparedness planning, the Administrative Policy & Procedure Manual – Policy 2022-01 shall 
serve to establish temporary organizational management coverage, or an “acting Town Manager” 
during a qualified absence of the Town Manager. 

 
Discussion 

This administrative policy states the process of succession based on the individuals that are absent 
and unavailable.  The policy states “In the event of the Town Manager’s qualified absence, the 
Town’s Chief of Police shall serve as the Acting Town Manager, possessing all of the duties and 
responsibilities of the Town Manager. In the event both the Town Manager and Chief of Police 
are absent and unavailable, the Town Clerk shall serve as the Acting Town Manager. In the event 
the Town Manager, Chief of Police, and Clerk are unavailable the Town’s Public Works 
Supervisor shall serve as the Acting Town Manager.” 
 

Financial Impact 

There is no financial impact to the approval of the Administrative Policy & Procedure Manual – 
Policy Number 2022-01 – Administrative Management During Absence of Town Manager or Police Chief. 
 

Conclusion 

Town Management respectfully requests approval of the Administrative Policy & Procedure Manual – 
Policy Number 2022-01 01 – Administrative Management During Absence of Town Manager or Police 
Chief. 



 

Page 1 of 2  

 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY & PROCEDURE MANUAL 

 
SECTION: Ref Charter § 3.02 

 
POLICY NO.: 2022-01 

 
ADMINISTERING DEPARTMENT(S): Town Administration 

 
SUBJECT: Administrative Management During Absence of Town Manager or Police Chief 

 
PURPOSE 
In accordance with Section 3.02 of the Town Charter, and in tandem with the Town’s disaster 
preparedness planning, the following policy shall serve to establish temporary organizational 
management coverage, or an “acting Town Manager” during a qualified absence of the Town 
Manager. 

 
POLICY 
In the event of the Town Manager’s qualified absence, the Town’s Chief of Police shall serve as the 
Acting Town Manager, possessing all of the duties and responsibilities of the Town Manager. In the 
event both the Town Manager and Chief of Police are absent and unavailable, the Town Clerk shall 
serve as the Acting Town Manager. In the event the Town Manager, Chief of Police, and Clerk are 
unavailable the Town’s Public Works Supervisor shall serve as the Acting Town Manager. 
 
In the event of the Town Manager’s unplanned absence and unavailability, the Town’s personnel and 
agents shall make a good faith effort to contact or correspond with the Town Manager to resolve 
operational inquiries before invoking the acting Town Manager provisions within this policy. 
 
Pursuant to § 3.02 of the Town Charter, this policy remains subject to the approval of the Town 
Council. Moreover, during a qualified absence, the Council may revoke the designations set forth 
herein at any time, subject to the applicable legal and administrative requirements for such official 
acts. In the event of such revocation, the Council shall convene a public hearing to appoint another 
Town agent or employee to serve as the Town Manager until the Town Manager returns or their 
incapacity ceases. 
 
QUALIFYING ABSENCES DEFINED: 
This policy is intended to apply in situations where the Town Manager is altogether unavailable, 
incapacitated, or otherwise unable to discharge the official duties of the office of Town Manager. For 
the purposes of this policy a qualified absence shall be defined as any period of time when the Town 
Manager is: (1) out of the office for scheduled leave for illness, personal matters, training, or other 
reasons; (2) travelling outside of the Tampa Bay area where it is difficult to immediately reach either 
the Town Manager via cell phone, email, text, and other available means; (3) is disabled, 
incapacitated, or otherwise unable to discharge the official duties of the office of Town Manager; or 



 

Page 2 of 2  

(4) is otherwise out of the office and unavailable for a period of time exceeding one (1) eight-hour 
work day.  For purposes of this policy, one (1) eight-hour workday shall be reflected in the office 
hours of 8:30am to 4:30pm, Monday to Friday.   
 
NOTICE: 
Town Staff shall notify the Town Clerk as soon as reasonably possible of future planned or unplanned 
absences, and the Town Clerk shall maintain records of planned absences. In addition to notifying the 
Town Clerk, the Town Manager shall also e-mail the Mayor and Council in advance of future planned 
absences exceeding one (1) day in duration to remind them of this policy.   

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPEAL:  
The provisions contained herein shall supersede and replace all prior policies and procedures 
regarding this subject. 
 
 
________________________________________   ___________________ 
Town Manager       Date 

 
Effective Date: 3/15/2022 
Amended or Reissue Date: Reference(s): 



Monday, April  18, 2022 Departmental budgets distributed

Wednesday, June 1, 2022 Pinellas County Property Appraiser delivers estimate of taxable value to taxing authorities 

Friday, July 1, 2022
Pinellas County Property Appraiser delivers certification of taxable value (DR- 420 ) to taxing 
authorities

Friday, July 22, 2022 Draft of budget delivered to Town Council

July 24-30, 2022 Town Manager to hold budget review meetings with individual Council Members

Wednesday, August 3, 2022
Last day for Town Clerk to notify Property Appraiser of proposed millage rate and date, time 
and place of first public budget hearing (DR-420, DR-420MMP)

Wednesday, August 10, 2022 Workshop -  Budget Discussion 6:30 PM Community Hall

Monday, August 22, 2022 TRIM notices mailed by Pinellas County

Friday, August 26, 2022 Budget for first public hearing posted to Town website

Wednesday, September 14, 2022
First Public Hearing on proposed budget, millage rate & capital plan - 
6:30 PM Community Hall

Sunday, September 18, 2022
Town to advertise intent to adopt a final millage rate and final budget (within 15 days after first 
public hearing and 2-5 days before second public hearing)

Wednesday, September 21, 2022
Final Public Hearing on Proposed Budget & Millage Rate (adopt final millage rate and budget) - 
6:30 PM Community Hall

Friday, September 23, 2022 Budget from Final Public Hearing posted on Town website

Friday, September 23, 2022
Town Clerk to provide final millage rate Resolution to Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
(within 3 days of adoption)

Saturday, October 1, 2022 Effective date of Fiscal Year 2021 - 2022 budget

Monday, October 3, 2022 Property Appraiser delivers DR-422, Final Taxable Value Certification, to taxing authorities

Thursday, October 6, 2022
Town Clerk to return completed DR-422 to Pinellas County Property Appraiser and a copy to the 
State of Florida

Monday, October 10, 2022
Submit completed TRIM Compliance Package to the State of Florida (within 30 days of final 
public hearing)

Friday, October 14, 2022 Adopted budget posted to City website

                    TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
                    BUDGET CALENDAR

                    2022 - 2023



Watershed Management Plan
Town of Kenneth City

https://24slides.com/?utm_campaign=mp&utm_medium=ppt&utm_source=pptlink&utm_content=&utm_term=


Watershed Management Plan
Town of Kenneth City

https://24slides.com/?utm_campaign=mp&utm_medium=ppt&utm_source=pptlink&utm_content=&utm_term=


4

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



5

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



6

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Blocked Inlet
Tailwater Condition
Undersized Piping
Collection Capacity Limitations
Localized Depression
Lack of Drainage Infrastructure



7

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Blocked Inlet
Tailwater Condition
Undersized Piping
Collection Capacity Limitations
Localized Depression
Lack of Drainage Infrastructure



8

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

“A Plan that determines the 
capacity of a watershed to provide 
adequate water for people and the 
environment, flood protection and 
good water quality.”



9

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Investigate Assess

Improve



10

Field Investigation

• Records Review

• Infrastructure 

“Truthing”

• Topographic Survey

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



11

Evaluation Software

• DEM / DTM

• ArcHydro

• ICPR

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



12

Alternative Analysis

• Define Acceptable 

Level of Service (LOS)

• Identify Projects

• Develop Prelim. 

Pricing

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



13

Hydrologic & Hydraulic (H&H) 
Model Development

• Overall Watershed

• Terrain

• Connectivity

• Infrastructure

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



14

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



15

Hydrologic & Hydraulic (H&H) 
Model Development

• Overall Watershed

• Terrain

• Connectivity

• Infrastructure

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



16

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

1951 Aerial Photograph



17

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Lake Thomas

Lake Janet

Joe’s Creek

1951 Aerial Photograph

Lake Charles

Cemetery

46th Ave.

Lake Paul

Unit 12



18

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



19

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

1951 Aerial Photograph



20

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



21

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



22

Hydrologic & Hydraulic (H&H) 
Model Development

• Overall Watershed

• Terrain

• Connectivity

• Infrastructure

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



23

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Note Color / 
Gradation 
Variation 
Signifies 
Lake 
Collection 
Areas 



24

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



25

Hydrologic & Hydraulic (H&H) 
Model Development

• Overall Watershed

• Terrain

• Connectivity

• Infrastructure

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



26

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



27

Hydrologic & Hydraulic (H&H) 
Model Development

• Overall Watershed

• Terrain

• Connectivity

• Infrastructure

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



28

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Basin
(Drainage 
Area)



29

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Node
(Water
Storage)



30

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Link
(Pipe)



31

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN

Link
(Weir)



32

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



33

Alternative Analysis

• Define Acceptable 

Level of Service (LOS)

• Identify Projects

• Develop Prelim. 

Pricing

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



34

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



35

Alternative Analysis

• Define Acceptable 

Level of Service (LOS)

• Identify Projects

• Develop Prelim. 

Pricing

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



36

Proposed Project Considerations
• Strategic Pipe Improvements

Best Bang for the Buck!

• Maximize Lake Storage Opportunities
Where is the Volume?

• Water Quality Improvement
Environmental Benefit + Funding Opportunities

• Leverage Positive Relationships
Look for “Win-Win” Projects.

WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN



THANK YOU

https://24slides.com/?utm_campaign=mp&utm_medium=ppt&utm_source=pptlink&utm_content=&utm_term=






























Amy Vikander

Vice President of Client Services

9/2/2020





























Amy Vikander

Vice President of Client Services

9/2/2020





























 

 

 

July 16, 2021  
 
Steve Spina 
Interim Town Manager 
Town of Kenneth City 
6000 54th Avenue North 
Kenneth City, FL 33709 
 
Re: Group Health Rates for Plan Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Dear Steve, 
 
We are pleased to provide you with your Group Health rates for the new plan year beginning October 1, 2021. The 
rates illustrated below represent an increase of 2.4% over your current medical rates.  The increase in the medical 
rate is 2% lower than the pool average. We believe that you will find this renewal very reasonable in light of current 
market conditions. 
 
Medical – PRM Plan HMO 55 

 Funding Rates 
Coverage Medical Medical  

COBRA 
Medical  

Reduced Retiree 
Employee $920.24 $938.64 $688.70 
Additional for Spouse $1,020.52 $1,040.93 $714.37 
Additional for Child $745.02 $759.92 N/A 
Additional for Family $1,551.83 $1,582.87 N/A 

 
 
Medical – PRM Plan BlueOptions 03559 

 Funding Rates 
Coverage Medical Medical  

COBRA 
Medical  

Reduced Retiree 
Employee $850.75 $867.77 $584.40 
Additional for Spouse $952.23 $971.27 $587.31 
Additional for Child $694.94 $708.84 N/A 
Additional for Family $1,447.19 $1,476.13 N/A 

 
 
Medical – PRM Plan BlueOptions 05360 

 Funding Rates 
Coverage Medical Medical  

COBRA 
Medical  

Reduced Retiree 
Employee $675.92 $689.44 $516.92 
Additional for Spouse $700.13 $714.13 $490.06 
Additional for Child $512.22 $522.46 N/A 
Additional for Family $1,069.07 $1,090.45 N/A 

4350 West Cypress Street 
Suite 300 

727-796-6187 
www.ajg.com 

Tampa, FL 33607  
USA   



Page 2 

 

 
Medical – PRM BlueOptions 05901 

 Funding Rates 
Coverage Medical Medical  

COBRA 
Medical  

Reduced Retiree 
Employee $596.91 $608.85 $456.54 
Additional for Spouse $618.29 $630.66 $432.79 
Additional for Child $452.33 $461.38 N/A 
Additional for Family $944.09 $962.97 N/A 

 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to serve you and your employees and look forward to working with you over the new 
plan year. 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact me at 727-796-6187. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Denise Mattera 
Area Vice President 
 
DM/cm 































Task 

No.
Description

Project 

Manager

Sr. Project 

Engineer 

Design / 

CAD 

Technician

Clerical / 

Field 

Personnel

Hours Total

1 Data Collection & Asset Inventory

1.01

Review of Town Mapping Records / Review of Historical Televising Data / Field 

"Truthing" of Structure and Pipe Presence / Pipe Size & Material Confirmation Where 

Possible

12 24 16 40 92 9,010.00$          

1.02
Coordination with Pinellas County / Joe's Creek WMP Review / Review of Stormwater 

Atlas Information / Field "Truthing" of Structure and Pipe Presence
4 16 8 8 36 4,130.00$          

1.03 Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) Record Review 2 12 6 6 26 2,925.00$          

1.04
Identification of Survey Locations (Lakes & Conveyance System) / Coordination with 

Surveyor
2 6 2 0 10 1,390.00$          

1.05
Identification of Preliminary Sediment Sampling Locations / Coordination with Material 

Testing Subconsultant
2 6 2 0 10 1,390.00$          

Subtotal 

(Task 1)
18,845.00$        

2 Mapping

2.01 Preparation of Town Stormwater Atlas / Update NPDES Inventory 4 16 32 8 3 6,410.00$          

2.02 Incorporation of Elevation Information (Where Applicable) 2 8 12 0 22 2,625.00$          

Subtotal 

(Task 2)
9,035.00$          

3 Stormwater Evaluation

3.01 Subdivision of Joe's Creek WMP Basins / Determine Subbasin Characteristics 8 32 16 4 60 7,660.00$          

3.02
Supplement Joe's Creek WMP Stormwater Model Schematic / Identify Supplemental 

Links, Nodes, Overland Weirs, Tailwater Conditions, Etc.
6 20 12 1 39 5,075.00$          

3.03 Existing Level of Service (LOS) Determination / Prepare Existing LOS Polygon(s) 6 40 24 4 74 9,215.00$          

3.04
Propose Stormwater Improvements to Improve LOS / Prepare Proposed LOS 

Polygon(s) / Incorporation into City's GIS (Maximum of Five (5) Alternatives)
12 100 40 4 156 20,320.00$        

3.05
Evaluation of Current Water Quality / Recommendation of Future Water Quality 

Improvements / Tabulation of Pollutant Removal
8 40 12 1 61 8,270.00$          

3.06 Prepare Opinions of Probable Cost for LOS Improvement Recommendations 6 24 8 1 39 5,265.00$          

Subtotal 

(Task 3)
55,805.00$        

4 Report Preparation

4.01 Prepare DRAFT Stormwater Master Plan Report 12 60 24 16 112 13,700.00$        

4.02
Attend Meeting with Town & SWFWMD Personnel / Provide Written Responses to 

Town & SWFWMD Commentary 
8 16 12 8 44 5,200.00$          

4.03 Prepare FINAL Stormwater Master Plan Report 8 24 16 12 60 6,920.00$          

Subtotal 

(Task 4)
25,820.00$        

109,505.00$      

10,250.00$        

5,245.00$          

Total 125,000.00$      

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Limited easement research will be performed on an as-needed basis.  Easements not depicted on plat records, available on the County’s website, are not proposed to be 

investigated.

Watershed Evaluation & Management Plan

Survey Subconsultant

Town of Kenneth City

FY 2019 Cooperative Funding Initiative

Proposed Man-hour Breakdown

PROPOSAL ASSUMPTIONS

Subtotal

No floodplain mapping is proposed as the purpose of this system is to evaluate the functionality of the Town’s drainage infrastructure for certain storm events.  Similarly, the 

preparation of a Floodplain Insurance Study (FIS) Report is not proposed. 

Sediment Sampling Subconsultant (Prelim. Lake Sediment)

All work is proposed to be performed using the NAVD88 vertical datum.  However, it is likely certain information will be on the older NGVD29 vertical datum.  Datum conversion, 

when/if needed, shall be done using a “standard” conversion factor.  Professional Land Surveyor services to perform this work is not proposed.  Horizontal datum adjustments are 

not proposed.  

The creation of a Digital Terrain Model (DTM) is not proposed.  AED will utilize the Digital Elevation Model (DEM), provided by SWFWMD, in order to develop basin and sub-basin 

boundaries.

The effect of sea level rise is not proposed to be evaluated.

Coordination with public and private utilities is not proposed.  

Geotechnical investigation is not proposed.  Soil type discussion will be based upon readily available NRCS maps.  

Inspection of pipe and structure condition is not proposed.  However, the Town will be notified when maintenance activities are believed to be immediately required.  

Field “truthing” may require the removal of catch basin and/or manhole lids.  This work shall be performed by others.  It is also assumed that the removal of lids can be done in 

intervals of ten (10) prior to staff mobilizing to the site. 

Extensive MOT, if needed to access structures on 46th Ave., shall be performed under a separate scope of services.  

The development of rainfall excess tables is not proposed.  Design storms will utilize the amounts established by the SWFWMD within their Project Design Aids located in Volume 

II of the ERP Applicant Handbook.  

Records associated with stormwater improvements and/or developments permitted by the FDEP (i.e. pre-SWFWMD) is not proposed.  

The development of a Surface Water Budget is not proposed.  

Water quality sampling is not proposed.  Industry-standard stormwater pollutant concentrations shall be utilized for the water quality analysis.  Water quality calculation 

methodology will be identical to the approach provided to SWFWMD for Cooperative Funded Initiation (CFI) projects.  

Modifications to existing stormwater and development-related codes are not proposed.

The development or revision of a stormwater fee is not proposed.



CITY OF 
2019-2020 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 

PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  
DATA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF 

KENNETH CITY 

Renewal Proposal For 

Property & Casualty Insurance Coverage 

Effective: 10/01/2021 

Expiration: 10/01/2022 

THIS DOCUMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY IS CONFIDENTIAL & 

PRIVILEGED IN NATURE – NOT FOR PUBLIC RECORD 



CITY OF 
2019-2020 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 

PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  
DATA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT PAGE NUMBER 

Named Insured  1 

Executive Summary 2 
Property, Property Terrorism, Property Active Shooter & Crime 
Proposal 3 

General Liability Proposal 10 

Auto Liability Proposal 11 

Public Officials / Employment Practices Liability 12 

Workers’ Compensation 13 

Cyber Liability 15 

Ancillary - Boiler & Machinery Proposal 16 

Optional - Excess Liability  17 

Ancillary - Pollution & Remediation Legal Liability 18 

Optional - Airport Owners & Operators Liability 19 

Exposure Change 20 

Proposal Pricing & Binding Authority 21 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

1 
 

NAMED INSURED 

 

 

NAMED INSURED AND MAILING ADDRESS 

TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
6000 54TH AVENUE NORTH 

KENNETH CITY, FL 33709-1806 

 

This proposal contains most terms, conditions, limits and deductibles provided under the program. However, refer 
to the PRM Coverage Document for specific and complete terms and conditions. 

 

PREPARED BY 
 

 

 

  

 

20 NORTH ORANGE, SUITE 500 
 

ORLANDO, FL  32801 
 

PHONE: (407) 445-2414 
 

FAX: (407) 445-2868 
 

TOLL FREE: (888) 501-0014 
 

  

 

 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

2 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

WHO WE ARE 

The WRM management team brings over 100 combined years of insurance industry intellectual capital to our 
clients dedicated to Public Entity Risk Management and insurance solutions. WRM employs a highly professional 
staff that has a proven record of identifying and satisfying client’s needs. WRM’s team commitment is reflected in 
a combined risk management knowledge and experience. 
 
Knowing that broad insurance resources and strong market relationships are essential, along with industry 
expertise and experience, WRM tactically sought out well-respected industry talent, with solid reputations and 
stellar track records to join our leadership ranks.   
 
WRM is a member of Ballator Insurance Group, formerly Accretive Insurance Services.   Ballator provides insurance 
program development, pool creation and underwriting, pool administration services and insurance placement to 
both the Public Entity and Non-Profit sectors. Ballator Insurance Group is wholly owned by AssuredPartners (AP). 
AP is the fastest-growing independent insurance agency in the U.S. Founded in 2011 as a national partnership of 
leading independent property and casualty and employee benefits brokerage firms. AP is now one of the largest 
brokers in the nation with offices in 38 states and two countries. AP is the 11th largest broker in the U.S. with over 
180 physical locations across the North America and over 7,500 employees. 
 
WRM employs a highly professional staff that has a proven record of identifying and satisfying client’s needs. 
WRM’s team commitment is reflected in a combined risk management knowledge and experience.  
 
WHAT WE DO 
 

We bring fresh and innovative ideas into the insurance industry.  WRM uses our ability of being a “Boutique 
Broker” to take advantage of the ever-changing insurance market opportunities.  WRM has the expertise that most 
small private agents and brokers do not have, and the large publicly traded brokers cannot take advantage of due 
to their size and corporate structure. 
 
WRM offers clients a thorough and meticulous insurance need analysis, plus delivers competitive cutting-edge 
products and services from nationally recognized insurance carriers based on realistic and reasonable fee and/or 
commissions.  WRM’s dedicated Management/Service Team is recognized throughout the industry for their 
commitment to providing clients with prompt responses and solutions.   
 
OUR REPUTATION 
 

WRM’s management team has an industry wide reputation for professionalism, quality service, knowledge, and 
client involvement on a daily basis at all levels, plus a genuine commitment to protect and shield employees and 
property of public entity groups and other businesses. WRM believes in its ability to lead in the field of risk 
management and loss management and provide innovative solutions.   
 
OUR CORPORATE PARTNERS 
 
Ballator Insurance Group and World Risk Management along with its partner companies’ mission is to maintain 
success through commitment, honest and timely communication, vision innovation and customer satisfaction.  
 

BALLATOR INSURANCE GROUP 
WORLD RISK MANAGEMENT, LLC 

FIRST FLORIDA INSURANCE BROKERS 
NON-PROFIT INSURANCE SERVICES  

LIBERTATE INSURANCE, LLC



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

3 
 

PROPERTY PROPOSAL 

PROPERTY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
TOTAL INSURED VALUES $4,470,799 $4,552,432 
DEDUCTIBLES 
 ALL OTHER PERILS, EXCEPT: 
 ALL OTHER FLOOD – PER UNIT 
 FLOOD – ZONES A&V 
 NAMED WINDSTORM PER UNIT VALUES SHALL APPLY 

 
$1,000 
$1,000 

EXCESS OF NFIP 
3% 

 
 
 
 
 

 VALUATION 
 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE 
 BUSINESS INCOME 
 COINSURANCE 
 INLAND MARINE 
 PROPERTY 

ACTUAL CASH VALUE 
ACTUAL LOSS SUSTAINED 

NONE 
REPLACEMENT COST 
REPLACEMENT COST 

 
 
 
 
 

 ASSOCIATION LIMITS 
 ALL PERILS, COVERAGE’S AND INSURED’S/MEMBERS 
COMBINED – PER OCCURRENCE, SUBJECT TO THE 
FOLLOWING SUB-LIMITS: 

$250,000,000  

- FLOOD – PER OCCURRENCE ANNUAL AGGREGATE $50,000,000  

- FLOOD SUBLIMIT – ANNUAL AGGREGATE  
- CONTRACTORS EQUIPMENT 
- FINE ARTS 
- LICENSED VEHICLES 
- UNLICENSED VEHICLES 

$5,000,000  

- FLOOD SUBLIMIT  
- PER OCCURRENCE  
- MISCELLANEOUS UNNAMED LOCATIONS 

$10,000,000  

- EARTHQUAKE SHOCK LIMIT 
- PER OCCURRENCE & IN THE ANNUAL 

AGGREGATE 
$50,000,000  

- WIND/HAIL LIMIT PER OCCURRENCE NAMED 
WINDSTORM $100,000,000  

- AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE 
- ON AND OFF PREMISES 
- OVER THE ROAD 

100% OF $2,500,000 AND 80% OF 
$7,500,000 EXCESS OF $2,500,000 

 
INCLUDED 

$10,000,000 
 

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

4 
 

PROPERTY PROPOSAL 

 

PROPERTY 
EXPIRING COVERAGE 

10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 
RENEWAL 

10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 
 ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE…] 

 - ACCIDENTAL CONTAMINATION $250,000/$500,000  
- ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES INCLUDED  
- ANIMALS 

- UNSCHEDULED ANIMALS 
$50,000 FOR ANY ONE ANIMAL / 

$250,000 PER OCCURRENCE  

- ASBESTOS CLEAN-UP & REMOVAL (RESULTANT) LIMITED COVERAGE   
- AUTOMATIC ACQUISITION LIMIT $25,000,000  
- AUTOMATIC ACQUISITION LIMIT FOR 

- VEHICLES 
- SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 

 
$10,000,000 

$10,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE 
 

- BUILDING ORDINANCE 
UNDAMAGED PORTION OF BUILDING INCLUDED   

- BUSINESS INTERRUPTION $100,000,000  
- CIVIL AUTHORITY 

WITHIN 10 MILES OF INSURED PREMISE 30 DAYS  

- CLAIM PREPARATION EXPENSE $1,000,000  

- CONTINGENT BUSINESS INTERRUPTION $5,000,000 
EXCEPT TAX  INTERRUPTION EXCLUDED  

- COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION & ADDITIONS $50,000,000 
EXCLUDES FRAME BUILDERS RISK  

- DEBRIS REMOVAL INCLUDED  
- DEMOLITION INCLUDED  
- EARTH MOVEMENT EXCEPT 

- VEHICLES, CONTRACTORS EQUIPMENT, 
FINE ARTS COMBINED 

$50,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE 
$5,000,000 COMBINED AGGREGATE 

 
 

- ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING (EDP) INCLUDED  
- ERRORS & OMISSIONS $25,000,000  
- EXPEDITING EXPENSE $50,000,000  
- EXTENDED PERIOD OF INDEMNITY 180 DAYS  
- EXTRA EXPENSE $50,000,000  
- FINE ARTS 
- UNSCHEDULED FINE ARTS 

INCLUDED 
$2,500,000  

- FIRE FIGHTING EXPENSE INCLUDED  
- FLOOD EXCEPT 

- SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 
- VEHICLES, CONTRACTORS EQUIPMENT, 

FINE ARTS COMBINED 

$50,000,000 
INCLUDED 

$5,000,000 COMBINED AGGREGATE 
 

 

- IMPROVEMENT & BETTERMENT INCLUDED  
- INCREASED COST OF CONSTRUCTION $25,000,000  
 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

5 
 

PROPERTY PROPOSAL 

  

  

PROPERTY 
EXPIRING COVERAGE 

10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 
RENEWAL 

10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 
 ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE…] 

 - INGRESS & EGRESS 
WITHIN 10 MILES OF INSURED PREMISE 30 DAYS  

- JEWELRY, FURS, & PRECIOUS METALS – 
SEPARATELY $500,000  

- LANDSCAPING, TEES, SAND TRAPS, GREENS, 
ATHLETIC GREENS EXCEPT 
- UNSCHEDULED LANDSCAPING, TEES, 

SAND TRAPS, GREENS, ATHLETIC GREENS 

$5,000,000 
 

$1,000,000 
 

 

- LEASEHOLD INTEREST INCLUDED   
- MISCELLANEOUS UNNAMED LOCATIONS 

EXCEPT 
- SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 

$25,000,000 
 

$10,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE 
 

- MOLD (RESULTANT) $35,000 AGGREGATE  
- MONEY AND SECURITIES $2,500,000  
- OFF PREMISES SERVICE INTERRUPTION 

INCLUDING EXTRA EXPENSE $25,000,000  

- PERSONAL EFFECTS INCLUDED  
PERSONAL PROPERTY OF OTHERS INCLUDED  

- PERSONAL PROPERTY OUTSIDE THE USA $1,000,000  
- PROTECTION AND PRESERVATION OF 

PROPERTY INCLUDED  

- PROPERTY OFF PREMISES INCLUDED  
- SIGNS INCLUDED  
- TRANSIT $25,000,000  
- TUNNELS, BRIDGES, DAMS, CATWALKS – 

UNSCHEDULED $500,000  

- VALUABLE PAPERS AND RECORDS INCLUDED  
- WATERCRAFT 

- UP TO 27 FEET, UNSCHEDULED 
- OVER 27 FEET, SCHEDULED 

 
$250,000 UNSCHEDULED  
ALL SCHEDULED INCLUDED 

 

 

EXCLUSIONS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
- RUST, WET/DRY ROT, LAND & LAND VALUES,  

COMMUNICABLE DISEASE, PROPERTY CYBER & 
DATA 

EXCLUDED   

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

6 
 

PROPERTY PROPOSAL 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

RATING EXPOSURES 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 
TOTAL INSURANCE VALUES 2020-2021 2021 – 2022 

      
TOTAL BUILDING VALUES $2,175,359 $2,225,018 

TOTAL CONTENT VALUES $230,405 $232,479 

DECLARED/PROP IN OPEN $418,819 $428,452 

EDP EQUIPMENT (HARDWARE) $100,485 $101,389 

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION/EXTRA EXPENSE $1,000,000 $1,000,000 

EQUIPMENT VALUES $164,564 $172,927 

AUTOMOBILE VALUES – ACTUAL CASH VALUE $381,167 $392,167 

AUTOMOBILE VALUES – REPLACEMENT COST $0 $ 

RENTAL VALUES $0 $0 

MISCELLANEOUS PROPERTY $0 $0 

   
TOTAL INSURABLE VALUES $4,470,799 $4,552,432 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

7 
 

PROPERTY TERRORISM & SABOTAGE PROPOSAL 

 

PROPERTY TERRORISM & SABOTAGE 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

CARRIER LLOYDS OF LONDON LLOYDS OF LONDON 

TERRORISM & SABOTAGE $25,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE 
$25,000,000 AGGREGATE 

$25,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE 
$25,000,000 AGGREGATE 

DEDUCTIBLE $10,000 $10,000 
 ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 

 - BUSINESS INTERRUPTION SUBLIMIT $93,024,718  
- CIVIL OR MILITARY AUTHORITY SUBLIMIT $1,000,000, 30 DAY(S), AND 1 MILE(S)  
- DEBRIS REMOVAL EXPENSES SUBLIMIT $250,000  
- DECONTAMINATION COSTS EXCLUDING NCBR SUBLIMIT $250,000  
- DEMOLITION & INCREASED COST OF CONSTRUCTION 

SUBLIMIT $1,000,000  

- ERRORS & OMISSIONS SUBLIMIT $250,000  
- ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING MEDIA SUBLIMIT $1,000,000  
- EXTENDED PERIOD OF INDEMNITY SUBLIMIT $0 AND 180 DAY(S)  
- FINE ART SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- INGRESS/EGRESS SUBLIMIT $ 1,000,000, 30 DAY(S), AND 1 MILE(S)  
- PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- PROFESSIONAL FEES SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- RELOCATION EXPENSE SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- SERVICE INTERRUPTION SUBLIMIT $ 1,000,000, 30 DAY(S), AND 1 MILE(S)  
- TRANSIT SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- VALUABLE PAPERS SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- ASBESTOS SUBLIMIT $ 500,000  
- AUTOMATIC COVERAGE SUBLIMIT $ 1,000,000 AND 30 DAY(S)  
- COMMISSIONS, PROFITS, & ROYALTIES SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- DELAY IN STARTUP COSTS SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- FIRE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS SUBLIMIT $ 10,000  
- GREEN BUILDING ADDITIONAL EXPENSE SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- KEY & LOCK EXPENSE SUBLIMIT $ 250,000  
- LANDSCAPING SUBLIMIT $ 10,000  
- LOSS OF ATTRACTION SUBLIMIT $0, 0 DAY(S), AND 0 MILE(S)  
- MISCELLANEOUS UNNAMED LOCATIONS SUBLIMIT $ 1,000,000 AND 30 DAY(S)  
- NEWLY ACQUIRED LOCATIONS SUBLIMIT $ 1,000,000 AND 90 DAY(S)  
- PROPERTY IN COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION SUBLIMIT $1,000,000  
- RENTAL INCOME SUBLIMIT $93,024,718  
- SOFT COST SUBLIMIT $10,000  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, ALL SUB-LIMITS LISTED ABOVE APPLY ON A PER OCCURRENCE BASIS AND ARE A 

PART OF, AND NOT IN ADDITION TO, THE MUNICIPALITIES TERRORISM AND SABOTAGE LIMIT OF LIABILITY 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

8 
 

ACTIVE SHOOTER & MALICIOUS ATTACK PROPOSAL 

 

 

 

ACTIVE SHOOTER & MALICIOUS ATTACK 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

CARRIER LLOYDS OF LONDON LLOYDS OF LONDON 

ACTIVE SHOOTER & MALICIOUS ATTACK $1,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE 
$1,000,000 AGGREGATE 

$1,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE 
$1,000,000 AGGREGATE 

DEDUCTIBLE $10,000 $10,000 
 ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 
 - ADDITIONAL SECURITY MEASURES SUBLIMIT $250,000  
- COUNSELING SUBLIMIT $250,000  
- PUBLIC RELATIONS COSTS SUBLIMIT $250,000  
- MISCELLANEOUS CRISIS MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 

SUBLIMIT $250,000  

- WAITING PERIOD 0 HOURS  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, ALL SUB-LIMITS LISTED ABOVE APPLY ON A PER OCCURRENCE BASIS AND ARE A 

PART OF, AND NOT IN ADDITION TO, THE ACTIVE SHOOTER AND MALICIOUS ATTACK LIMIT OF LIABILITY 

 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

9 
 

CRIME PROPOSAL 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CRIME 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
DEDUCTIBLE $1,000  
 LIMITS 

 EMPLOYEE THEFT-PER LOSS COVERAGE $500,000  

 EMPLOYEE THEFT-PER EMPLOYEE COVERAGE NOT COVERED  

 FORGERY OR ALTERATION $500,000  
 INSIDE PREMISES-THEFT OF MONEY & 

SECURITIES $500,000  

 INSIDE PREMISES-ROBBERY, SAFE BURGLARY-
OTHER PROP $500,000  

 OUTSIDE THE PREMISES $500,000  

 COMPUTER FRAUD $500,000  

 FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD $500,000  
 MONEY ORDERS AND COUNTERFEIT PAPER 

CURRENCY $500,000  
 

CONDITIONS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 

 FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF DUTY INCLUDED INCLUDED  
 45 DAY NOTICE OF CANCELLATION/10 DAYS 

NON-PAYMENT INCLUDED  

 60 DAY LOSS REPORT REQUIREMENT INCLUDED  

 NO MINIMUM EARNED PREMIUM INCLUDED  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

10 
 

GENERAL LIABILITY PROPOSAL 

*COMMUNICABLE DISEASE SUB-LIMIT & AGGREGATES APPLIES TO ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES COMBINED  

GENERAL LIABILITY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
COVERAGE FORM OCCURRENCE OCCURRENCE 
DEDUCTIBLE NIL NIL 
 LIMITS 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY $2,000,000  
 

COVERAGE [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY INCLUDED  

 LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY INCLUDED  

 MISCELLANEOUS PROFESSIONAL INCLUDED  
 

TERMS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 ASSAULT & BATTERY INCLUDED  

 BLANKET CONTRACTUAL-HOLD HARMLESS INCLUDED  

 BODILY INJURY/PROPERTY DAMAGE INCLUDED  

 EMT/PARAMEDICAL COVERED INCLUDED  

 FALSE ARREST/IMPRISONMENT INCLUDED  

 HOST & LIQUOR LIABILITY INCLUDED  

 INVASION OF RIGHT OF PRIVACY INCLUDED  

 MALICIOUS PROSECUTION INCLUDED  

 MENTAL ANGUISH INCLUDED  

 MENTAL INJURY INCLUDED  

 PROPERTY IN THE CARE, CUSTODY & CONTROL INCLUDED  

 COMMUNICABLE DISEASE 
$200,000 PER CLAIMANT/$300,000 PER 

OCC/$300,000 MEMBER 
AGG/$3,000,000 POOL AGG 

 

 

EXCLUSIONS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 AIRCRAFT LIABILITY EXCLUDED  

 MEDIAL PAYMENTS (NOT LEGAL LIABILITY) EXCLUDED  
 PRODUCT RECALL, TAMPERING OR 

GUARANTEE EXCLUDED  

 WAR, NUCLEAR HAZARDS EXCLUDED  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 

ASSOCIATION AGGREGATE $100,000,000 FOR ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

11 
 

AUTO LIABILITY PROPOSAL 

 

AUTO LIABILITY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
COVERAGE FORM OCCURRENCE OCCURRENCE 
DEDUCTIBLE NIL NIL 
 LIMITS 

LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $2,000,000  
 

COVERAGE [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 PERSONAL INJURY PROTECTION STATUTORY  
 PHYSICAL DAMAGE 

- COLLISION 
- COMPREHENSIVE 

 
EXCLUDED - COVERED UNDER PROPERTY 
EXCLUDED - COVERED UNDER PROPERTY 

 

 HIRED/BORROWED LIABILITY $2,000,000  

 HIRED/BORROWED PHYSICAL DAMAGE INCLUDED  

 NON-OWNED LIABILITY $2,000,000  

 NON-OWNED PHYSICAL DAMAGE INCLUDED  
 

EXCLUSIONS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXCLUDED – COVERED UNDER PROPERTY  

 MEDICAL PAYMENTS EXCLUDED  

 UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORIST EXCLUDED  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 

ASSOCIATION AGGREGATE $100,000,000 FOR ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

12 
 

PUBLIC OFFICIALS / EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY PROPOSAL 

  

*COMMUNICABLE DISEASE SUB-LIMIT & AGGREGATES APPLIES TO ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES COMBINED

PUBLIC OFFICIALS / EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
COVERAGE FORM CLAIMS MADE CLAIMS MADE 
RETROACTIVE DATE 10/01/1992 10/01/1992 
DEDUCTIBLE NIL NIL 
 PUBLIC OFFICIALS LIABILITY 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY $2,000,000  

ANNUAL AGGREGATE $6,000,000  
 

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY 
LIMIT OF LIABILITY $2,000,000  

ANNUAL AGGREGATE $6,000,000  
 

SUBLIMITS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 BERT HARRIS RETRO DATE 10/1/2015 $300,000/$300,000  
 INVERSE CONDEMNATION RETRO DATE:  

10/1/15 $100,000/$100,000  

 NON-MONETARY DAMAGES RETRO DATE 
10/1/15 $100,000/$100,000  

 

COVERAGE [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 ELECTED OFFICIALS, APPOINTED OFFICERS INCLUDED  

 ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INCLUDED  
 MISFEASANCE, MALFEASANCE & 

NONFEASANCE INCLUDED  

 NEGLIGENCE INCLUDED  

 SEXUAL HARASSMENT INCLUDED  
 SEXUAL MISCONDUCT RETRO DATE: 

10/01/1999 INCLUDED  

 WRONGFUL ACTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS INCLUDED  

 COMMUNICABLE DISEASE* 
$200,000 PER CLAIMANT/$300,000 PER 

OCC/$300,000 MEMBER 
AGG/$3,000,000 POOL AGG 

 

 

DISCLAIMER 
BOTH PUBLIC OFFICIALS LIABILITY AND EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY IS SUBJECT TO A PER MEMBER COMBINED 

AGGREGATE OF $6,000,000 

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 

ASSOCIATION AGGREGATE $100,000,000 FOR ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

13 
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROPOSAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
DEDUCTIBLE NIL NIL 
 LIMITS 
 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

- MEDICAL 
- DISABILITY 
- DEATH 

STATUTORY  

 EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY 
- EACH ACCIDENT 
- EACH EMPLOYEE FOR DISEASE 

 
$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 

 
 
 

 

TERMS & CONDITIONS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 
 BROAD FORM ALL STATES INCLUDED  

 MARITIME COVERAGE ENDORSEMENT INCLUDED  

 VOLUNTARY COMPENSATION ENDORSEMENT INCLUDED  
 

SUBJECT TO 
 ANNUAL POLICY AUDIT – PLEASE NOTE THE 

10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 WC 
COVERAGE PERIOD WILL BE AUDITED AT A 
RATE OF .0550322 PER DOLLAR OF PAYROLL 
ON THE TOTAL WC PREMIUM, BEFORE ANY 
PARTICIPATION CREDITS 

INCLUDED  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

14 
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROPOSAL 

 

CLASS 
CODE DESCRIPTION 

2020 – 2021 
ESTIMATED 

PAYROLL 

2021 – 2022  
ESTIMATED 
PAYROLL 

    
5509 STREET OR ROAD PAVING $143,067 $151,500 

7720 POLICE OFFICERS & DRIVERS $730,394 $814,100 

8810 CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES $248,642 $190,200 

TOTAL PAYROLL $1,122,103 1,155,800 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

15 
 

CYBER LIABILITY PROPOSAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

CYBER LIABILITY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

CARRIER GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE 
NAMED INSURED PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
COVERAGE FORM CLAIMS MADE CLAIMS MADE 
RETROACTIVE DATE 10/01/2016 10/01/2016 
DEDUCTIBLE $5,000 $10,000 
 LIMITS 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY $1,000,000  

ANNUAL AGGREGATE $10,000,000 POOL AGGREGATE $5,000,000 
 

COVERAGE (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 BUSINESS INCOME/EXTRA EXPENSE INCLUDED  

 CYBER EXTORTION THREATS INCLUDED  

 MEDIA LIABILITY INCLUDED  

 PUBLIC RELATIONS EXPENSE INCLUDED  
 REPLACEMENT/RESTORATION OF ELECTRONIC 

DATA INCLUDED  

 SECURITY BREACH EXPENSE INCLUDED  
 SECURITY BREACH LIABILITY [INCLUDES 

REGULATORY FINES/PENALTIES AND PCI FINES] INCLUDED  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

16 
 

ANCILLARY– BOILER & MACHINERY PROPOSAL 

  

 

 

 

BOILER & MACHINERY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

CARRIER TRAVELERS ENERGYMAX 21 TRAVELERS ENERGYMAX21 
NAMED INSURED PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
DEDUCTIBLES 
 ALL OBJECTS 
 TRANSFORMERS 10,000 KVA 

 
$1,000 

$10,000 

 
 
 

 VALUATION 
 ALL OTHER EQUIPMENT 
 EQUIPMENT 20 YEARS OR OLDER 

REPAIR AND/OR REPLACEMENT 
ACTUAL CASH VALUE 

 
 

 

ASSOCIATION LIMITS 
LIMIT PER ACCIDENT $50,000,000  

 

ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 
 CONTINGENT BUSINESS INTERRUPTION/EXTRA 

EXPENSE $250,000  

 DEMOLITION/INCREASED COST $1,000,000  

 ERRORS IN DESCRIPTION POLICY LIMIT  

 EXPEDITING EXPENSE POLICY LIMIT  

 HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE $2,000,000  

 MEDIA $500,000  

 NEWLY ACQUIRED LOCATION POLICY LIMIT  

 ORDINANCE OR LAW INCL. DEMOLITION $1,000,000  

 REFRIGERANT CONTAMINATION POLICY LIMIT  

 WATER DAMAGE POLICY LIMIT  
 

MAJOR PERILS EXCLUDED 
 EARTHQUAKE EXCLUDED  
 EC PERILS EXCLUDED  
 FLOOD EXCLUDED  
 FREEZE EXCLUDED  
 FURNACE EXPLOSION  EXCLUDED  
 LIGHTNING EXCLUDED  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

17 
 

OPTIONAL – EXCESS LIABILITY PROPOSAL- NOT PURCHASED 

 
 

 

EXCESS LIABILITY 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 1001/2022 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
 COVERAGES INCLUDED 

 AUTO LIABILITY  EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY  GENERAL LIABILITY 

 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY  ERRORS & OMISSIONS LIABILITY  LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY 
 

EXCLUSIONS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 ABUSE OR MOLESTATION  EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY/WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION 

 POLLUTION LIABILITY EXCLUSION-
HOSTILE FIRE COVERAGE 

 AIRPORT LIABILITY  FAILURE TO SUPPLY EXCLUSION-
UTILITIES  SILICA OR DUST 

 ASBESTOS  FUNGI OR BACTERIA  WAR 
 AUTOMOBILE FIRST PARTY COVERAGE  NURSING HOME  WHARFINGERS’ LIABILITY 

 DAMS, LEVEES, DIKES OR RESERVOIRS  PROPERTY DAMAGE EXCLUSION-REAL 
AND/OR PERSONAL PROPERTY  

 

LINE OF COVERAGE LIMIT EXCESS OF LIMITS COVERAGE TRIGGER 

 AUTO LIABILITY $3,000,000 $2,000,000 PER ACCIDENT 

 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY $3,000,000 $2,000,000 PER CLAIM 

 EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY $3,000,000 $2,000,000 PER CLAIM 

 GENERAL LIABILITY INCL. LAW ENFORCEMENT $3,000,000 $2,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE 

 MISCELLANEOUS PROFESSIONAL $3,000,000 $2,000,000 PER CLAIM 
 

 
*$3,000,000 COMBINED EXCESS LIABILITY AGGREGATE APPLIES PER MEMBER FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITY, PUBLIC OFFICIALS 

ERRORS & OMISSIONS AND EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY ONLY* 
QUOTATION AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST 

ASSOCIATION AGGREGATE $100,000,000 FOR ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

18 
 

ANCILLARY– POLLUTION & REMEDIATION LIABILITY PROPOSAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

POLLUTION AND REMEDIATION LEGAL LIABILITY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

CARRIER INDIAN HARBOR INSURANCE CO. INDIAN HARBOR INSURANCE CO. 
NAMED INSURED PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
COVERAGE FORM CLAIMS MADE CLAIMS MADE 
RETROACTIVE DATE 10/01/1998 10/01/1998 
SELF-INSURED RETENTION $25,000 $25,000 
 LIMITS 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY EACH POLLUTION CONDITION $1,000,000  

TOTAL LIMIT OF LIABILITY ANNUAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000  

 EMERGENCY REMEDIATION EXPENSE $250,000  
 EMERGENCY REMEDIATION EXPENSE 

AGGREGATE $1,000,000  
 

COVERAGE (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 CONTINGENT TRANSPORTATION COVERAGE INCLUDED  

 LEGAL DEFENSE EXPENSE INCLUDED  
 ON PREMISES & OFF PREMISES REMEDIATION 

LEGAL LIABILITY INCLUDED  

 POLLUTION LEGAL LIABILITY INCLUDED  

 STORAGE TANKS INCLUDED  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

19 
 

OPTIONAL – AIRPORT OWNERS & OPERATORS LIABILITY PROPOSAL- NOT PURCHASED 

 

 

 

AIRPORT OWNERS AND OPERATORS LIABILITY 

EXPIRING COVERAGE 
10/01/2020 TO 10/01/2021 

RENEWAL 
10/01/2021 TO 10/01/2022 

CARRIER ACE PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE CO ACE PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE CO 
NAMED INSURED PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 
FAA ID STATE NAME N/A N/A 
COVERAGE FORM OCCURRENCE OCCURRENCE 
DEDUCTIBLE NIL NIL 
 LIMITS 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY  $2,000,000  

 EXTENDED COVERAGE-WAR, HI-JACKING 
& OTHER PERILS ANNUAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000  

 FIRE DAMAGE LIMIT ANY ONE FIRE $100,000  
 HANGARKEEPERS NOT “IN FLIGHT” LIMIT 

ANY ONE OCCURRENCE $1,000,000  

 HANGARKEEPERS NOT “IN FLIGHT” LIMIT 
ANY ONE AIRCRAFT $1,000,000  

 MALPRACTICE ANNUAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000  

 MEDICAL EXPENSE LIMIT ANY ONE PERSON $1,000  

 NON-OWNED AIRCRAFT LIABILITY $2,000,000  
 PERSONAL INJURY AND ADVERTISING 

INJURY ANNUAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000  

 PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS 
ANNUAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000  

 

CONDITIONS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 
 60 DAYS NOTICE OF CANCELLATION, NON-

RENEWAL OR REDUCTION IN COVERAGE BY 
INSURER, BUT 10 DAYS NOTICE FOR NON-
PAYMENT OF PREMIUM 

  

 PER EXPIRING 
CHANGE OR IMPROVEMENT TO EXPIRING 
 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

20 
 

EXPOSURE CHANGE 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXPOSURE CHANGE 

EXPOSURE 2020-2021 2021 – 2022 % CHANGE 

 
PROPERTY TIV $4,470,799 $4,552,432 2% 

NUMBER OF AUTOMOBILES 22 24 9% 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 21 21 0% 

TOTAL PAYROLL $1,122,103 $1,155,800 3% 



TOWN OF KENNETH CITY 
2021 – 2022 RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE  

PRESENTED: AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
 

21 
 

PROPOSAL PRICING & BINDING AUTHORITY 

AFTER CAREFUL CONSIDERATION OF THE REFERENCED PROPOSAL, WE ACCEPT YOUR INSURANCE PROGRAM AS 

INDICATED WITH AN “X” BELOW: 
 

PAYMENT PLAN:  PRM ALLOWS THEIR MEMBERS TO PAY THEIR TOTAL COSTS IN FOUR (4) QUARTERLY INSTALLMENTS. THE 

FIRST INSTALLMENT IS DUE AT INCEPTION AND IS EQUAL TO 25% OF ALL COSTS. THE REMAINING COSTS WILL BE PAID OVER THE 

NEXT THREE (3) QUARTERS. 
 
THIS WARRANTS THAT YOU HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE OF ANY CLAIM, OR INCIDENT THAT MAY RESULT IN A CLAIM, THAT HAS NOT 

BEEN REPORTED TO THE INSURANCE CARRIER. 
 
IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT REFERENCED PROPOSAL PROVIDES ONLY A SUMMARY OF THE INSURANCE PROGRAM 

OPTIONS OFFERED.  THE ACTUAL POLICIES WILL CONTAIN THE COMPLETE TERMS, CONDITIONS, DEDUCTIBLES, EXCLUSIONS, 
ETCETERA.  PLEASE REVIEW POLICY LANGUAGE FOR A FULL UNDERSTANDING OF PURCHASED PROGRAM. 

 

________________________________    _______________________________ 
                Member Signature       Date 
 
________________________________ 
                Print Member Name 
 

SIGNED BINDING AUTHORITY TO BE RETURNED BY 9/15/2021 
 

THIS DOCUMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY IS CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY IN NATURE - NOT FOR PUBLIC RECORD. 

PROPERTY & CASUALTY COVERAGES 
 

PREMIUM BREAKDOWN BIND 

2020-2021 2021 – 2022  % CHANGE YES NO 

PRM PROPERTY & CRIME $27,939 $28,449     
 

PRM BOILER & MACHINERY $236 $260     
 

PRM GL/LEL/AL/E&O $55,244 $61,455     
 

PRM WORKERS’ COMPENSATION $61,752 $63,606     
 

PREFERRED MEMBER PARTICIPATION CREDIT -$726 -$769    
 

GRAND TOTAL  $144,445 $153,002    5.92 % 
 

OPTIONAL/ANCILLARY COVERAGES 

 

CYBER LIABILITY INCLUDED INCLUDED    
 

POLLUTION LIABILITY $1,425 $1,476    
 

AVIATION LIABILITY N/A N/A    





  
 
 
Town of Kenneth City  
4600 58th St N  
Kenneth City, FL  33709  
   

IMMEDIATE ATTENTION NEEDED 
11/15/2021 
 
Dear Valued Customer,  
 
Your current lease contract for the Konica Minolta machine identified below is set to expire on 1/16/2022.  If you opt not 
to upgrade this machine, you may renew or reinstate your maintenance for another 2 years utilizing the monthly contract 
price as identified below and can upgrade at any time during that 12-24 month periods.   The total term may not exceed 60 
months.  If you choose to renew or reinstate maintenance, please send a purchase order with this new pricing listed:   

 
5th YEAR – from 1/17/22 to 1/16/23 
Serial Number: A7R0017002347   Monthly Price each:  $106.89 
Model: Bizhub C258 Monthly B&W Copy Allowance: 5250 (BW)    Overages: 0.0078 (BW) 
 State of Florida 600-000-11-1  Monthly Color Copy Allowance: 1000 (Color)   Overages: 0.0660 (Color) 
 

     Please submit your renewal purchase order via mail or e-mail to: 
  

Konica Minolta Business Solutions, attn. Beth Swain  
100 William Drive, Ramsey, NJ  07446 

bswain@kmbs.konicaminolta.us 
 
      Please select one of the options below and either email or mail your response based on the above information.  If we 
have not heard from you by the above expiration date, Konica Minolta will make arrangements to pick up your machine. 
 
(1) _____   Please put us in touch with a Konica Minolta representative to discuss an upgrade. 
 
(2) ____   Please renew our lease at the rates identified above.   Our renewal purchase order is attached. 
 
(3) ___X__  Please renew our lease at the rates identified above.  A PO is not required; we will pay via credit card. 
 
 
Signature is required by an authorized party: 
 
____________________      _________________________________       _____________________         ______________                     
  
       Printed Name  Customer Signature      Title                        Date 
 
Please call with any questions you may have at 813-207-8257 – Beth Swain.  We wish to thank you for your business and 
look forward to serving you in the future.           Contract no. 600-000-11-1 


























































































































	KC TC Packet 04-13-2022 Council Meeting.pdf
	KC TC Packet 04-13-2022 Council Meeting.pdf
	KC TC Packet 04-13-2022 Council Meeting.pdf
	Council Meeting Agenda April 13 2022.pdf
	03-09-22  Meeting Minutes.docx back up.pdf
	Carahsoft - Accela Inc. - 03.16.2022 - Quote 32732229.pdf
	EOC Letter CP.pdf
	22_04_13_Agenda Item - Solid Waste Agreement.pdf
	22_04_13_Agenda Item - Finance and Accounting Services.pdf
	TKC Engagement Letter 2022 - RDM w Track Changes.pdf
	2022-03-21 DRAFT FAQ re Chp 54.pdf
	2020 KC Measurement Guidance - Appendix A.pdf
	Res 2020-05 re Fine Schedule (Passed July 2020).pdf
	22_04_13_Agenda Item - Acting Manager.pdf
	2022-03-14 KC DRAFT Acting Manager Policy (002).pdf
	FY 22 23 Budget calendar.pdf
	Table 1

	PD Monthly Stats March 2022.pdf
	Building Dept Stats.pdf

	Sweeper.pdf
	Civics Plus- combined contract agreement.pdf
	FL - Kenneth City - Signed AudioEye SOW - 09022020.pdf
	FL - Kenneth City - MSA - 09022020.pdf
	FL - Kenneth City - CivicCMS - Signed Agreement - 03272019.pdf

	Crawford and Jones 2021.pdf
	Gallager Health Insurance Rates.pdf
	Interlocal_Building Dept_Kenneth City.pdf
	Kenneth City Interlocal 2.15.20.pdf
	KC_WMP PO.pdf
	SKM_C25819061816050
	KC_WEMP PMB 2017-1006

	PRM Liability2021-22.pdf
	Kenneth City 2021 - 2022 P&C Renewal Proposal 08.12.2021.pdf
	PRM contract proposal acceptance COPY 9-14-2021.pdf

	Konica Minolta 2021.pdf
	PBA Contract October 1 2021 thru September 30 2024.pdf
	PCSO Agreement.pdf
	Trask Daigneault Attorney Services.pdf

	Kenneth City FD March 2022.pdf

	KC_WMP_Presentation.pdf
	Balanced scorecard slide 1
	Balanced scorecard slide 1
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 6
	Balanced scorecard slide 10




